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MINUTES:

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We will open the hearings on HB 1263, HB 1257, and HB
1208. 1 will start with testimony from legislators.

Rep. Duane DeKrey: Sponsor HB 1208. The bill | introduced is fairly simple in nature. It
says that the logo would stay until the citizens of the Standing Rock reservation had a
chance to vote on it.

Rep. Mark Dosch: Sponsor 1263. Testimony attachment 1.
Rep.David Monson: Sponsor 1257. Testimony attachment 2.
Sen. David Hogue: Neutral. Testimony attachment 3.

Rep. Corey Mock: | appreciate your testimony and have a copy of the constitution with me
as well. Since you are here on a neutral testimony, HB 1263 has in last line that if this
passes and we are penalized for keeping the nickname that attorney general shall
consider filing a federal antitrust claim against the association .In 2007the state of ND, the
State Board of Higher Education, and UND had a settlement agreement with the NCAA.
Under what legal authority would the state have to re-challenge the NCAA for violation of
antitrust laws?

Sen. David Hogue: | can't speak about what the attorney general's legal parliaments
would be. He is a constitutional officer and he has the discretion on whether he will initiate
litigation against another party or another organization. The only other thing | forgot to
mention was that the legislative authority is stronger than usual than compared in most
states. In ND one of our unique features is that when we pass a law it cannot be declared
unconstitutional unless four out of five ND supreme court justices say it's unconstitutional.

Rep. Corey Mock: More generally, can we sue an organization for the same violation
without any other changes? Is that legally possible?

Sen. David Hogue: As many know you can initiate lawsuits. That doesn’t mean they will
be successful. | would have to defer that to the attorney general.
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Rep. Al Carlson: Sponsor 1263. Attachment 4. | agree that we are here to listen to what
the people have to say. We work for the people of ND and that's why this bill is before you
in different versions. | will read over my bill (refer to HB 1263). In response to Rep. Corey
Mock's question, it is the responsibility of the attorney general to defend us no matter if he
agrees with us or not. The reason this is here is | believe that this situation was poorly
handled. What | did was put a history together of the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo.
When the members of the Sioux nation come to me and say they don't want it, then ['ll
accept that decision. | think this was poorly handled and | think it is a proud heritage of our
state. If | thought for one minute this was degrading in any way | would have not sponsored
this bill. This deserves to have a hearing.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? We will now have a video.
Video: Pride of the Sioux.

John Chaske: | am here to speak on behalf of the majority at Spirit Lake. In 2009 our tribe
overwhelmingly supported the use of the Sioux name at UND. | have the highest respect
for the 1969 granting of permission to UND to use the Sioux name. Since then there they
have been many opportunities opened for our people. It would be disrespectful to dishonor
the ceremony that granted the permission in 1969. There is no question in my mind that
UND has received permission from both Standing Rock and Spirit Lake. Opponents say the
logo imagery is abusing and offensive | feel that removing it is more destructive. We have
been scrutinized and stomped on by letting ND know we support the Fighting Sioux
nickname. Opponents at Spirit Lake handed out pamphlets on racism and discrimination.
Growing up on the reservation in the early 1950s, I've lived and shared racial incidents. |
think our current choice should be to move forward for racial harmony. I've seen pride swell
in our children for the Fighting Sioux. Watching the games and seeing the chants, at that
moment they were proud to be Sioux. If UND can achieve harmony amongst their players,
by all means we should support that. Remember the name was given to UND as an
educational institution. A majority of the students at UND are not Sioux and these students
need to show respect for the minority. Many of our tribal colleges are named in honor of
tribal chiefs. It is wrong that the NCAA has sanctioned UND and then agreed to declare
that the UND Fighting Sioux nickname is hostile and abusive. Only the Sioux citizens of ND
should have a say in this matter. It is wrong that the ND Higher Education and NCAA have
decided to retire the name. Many may not know that the state name North Dakota is named
after the Lakota Sioux. Today we have a chance to right a wrong.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions?

Rep. Corey Mock: | used to teach at UND and one thing | heard in the halls was that
during a debate one student said “they think we are hostile now, wait till they try to take
away our nickname.” How does that make you feel when you see someone that feels that
way?

John Chaske: | think it's selfish. It's been a long journey for our committee. We hear
comments like that every day. What was encouraging was at Devils Lake. A group of UND
grads encouraged me. People that say bad things about the imagery. There is something
wrong there. It is as though they are trying to take something out on us.
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Rep. Joe Heilman: Could you explain what the Sioux name means to your people
historically as kind of the definition of the word Sioux and does fighting have any negative
connotation to you and your people in relation to that?

John Chaske: There has been a joke that the Sioux like to fight. | don’'t see anything
negative at all. It fits with the UND Fighting Sioux.

Vice Chair Lisa Meier: Out of all three bills which bill do you think is best to go through
with?

John Chaske: !'m in favor of all three and that there needs to be something done to right
the wrongdoing.

Rep. Phillip Mueller: Could you walk us through the process you went through at Spirit
Lake to receive tribal approval? How did that work?

John Chaske: As an elder we have monthly meeting on the reservation. We have
meetings to discuss different issues. At several of the meetings, the elders brought it up
and said time was running out. Someone asked for a vote amongst them and 100% were in
favor of keeping that name. They didn’t know where to turn because there was a little
controversy on our tribal council. Some of the tribal members at the meeting challenged the
authority of not having a vote and we had nowhere to turn, so | put together an
organizational meeting. | might add that usually people get riled up around election time
but this controversy over the UND name overshadowed all that.

Rep. Corey Mock: One of the things you mentioned in your story was going to the Hockey
game and seeing the support. One of the sanction the NCAA has put on ND if we don't
resolve the situation is that we would no longer be able to host post season. So we would
no longer be able to host play offs. Has the committee discussed if they are willing to keep
the name and lose the ability to watch their team perform for championships and national
titles?

John Chaske: My personal feeling is to take the NCAA to task and file a lawsuit.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch; Rep. Corey Mock you will hear from some of the testifiers
coming later that UND would not have an opportunity to host those playoffs anyway.

Eunice Abraham Davidson: Support. Testimony attachment 5.

Archie D. Fool Bear: | am a member of the Standing Rock Sioux tribe. | was on tribal
council from 2003-07. On the tribal council were to travel to communities to give reports
and meet the people. In 2005 the council passed a resolution to oppose UND’s use of the
nickname and logo. | was on that council and | voted to opposed too. We were given
information on how derogatory and hostite UND was to Indian students. After that | traveled
to a community where a lady asked why we opposed. | told her we always oppose it and
she told me to research it more. We traveled to UND to meet with students. The students
we met with were, for the most part, not Sioux students. The majority coming out in
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opposition were non Sioux individuals. We found in 1969 ac gave UND the right to use that
name. We all know that through society religion is held in high regard. In our community we
do the same. In 2009 | shared this info with State Hoard of Higher Education about the
ceremony being completed at UND giving them the perpetual use of that name. | have
asked for referendum vote on this from the council. It was never a full seventeen opposing.
It was usually split. The personal opinions of the council should not stop people from being
hard. The council doesn’t have power to take that name away. When the resolutions are
made to get rid of the name they are disrespecting those men that give the name. The
record will show that the name change was voted down by the people of Standing Rock. in
March 2010, | delivered a petition. We thought it wouidn’t be a big problem but | feel that
the fear of that vote exists. They don't want the people to be heard. I've never seen the
petition for not having a vote but | guess it exists. In a June meeting the council made a
motion again not to do anything with the logo since it was retired, placing a moratorium
against the people from saying anything. It was the opinion of the in house attorney that
that was illegal. So we started a court action. | come before you today as an enrolled
member of Standing Rock tribe who, with 1,004 people, wants to have a vote. | come to
advocate a do pass on whatever the committee will come up with that will uphold what the
ceremony did when they gave UND the logo.

Rep. Joe Heilman: How many enrolled members are in the tribe and how many are
required in your constitution or whatever, to have a petition?

Archie D. Fool Bear: When | was there it was about 16,008 enrolled. That is the total
enrolled membership. The numbers are based on the election code. We were told to use
the fifty percentile from the last vote as a figure to go by.

Rep. Bob Hunskor: Thank you for the history lesson on this issue. If there had been a
vote, do you believe the majority of the members would support the logo?

Archie D. Fool Bear: My feeling is that the Fighting Sioux name would have had
overwhelming support.

Diane Loon Gates: | am an enrolled member of Standing Rock Sioux tribe. | was at UND.
It was a wonderful experience for me and gave me the thought of a future for our people.
Let us be proud we are a recognized people and live in harmony. Many of our youth today
have left their families behind because of hopelessness. Please give native youth a chance
to a brighter future. We have Native Americans that receive education through UND.
Doctors, lawyers, pharmacists, teachers, dentists, to list a few, and we'd like to see that
continue.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? We will have a video.

Video: Flag Ceremony at the Ralph Engelstad Arena.

Linus End of Horn: | am from Standing Rock. | was at the ceremony in 1969. The
conversation | heard from the elders and the agreement at the time was that we as Sioux

people would always be remembered through this great school. When | graduated from
UND | remember the oath: “to be on the side of right.” | am a Fighting Sioux. The name
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Sioux is a very proud name among the Lakota people in ND and SD. As | stand here | want
to encourage you to make a decision that the name stands. Do it in a positive manner to
reflect on the students.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Former majority leader Earl Strinden.

Earl Strinden: | would like to say that | don't have anything to do with the three bills that
have been introduced. No one from the Ralph Engelstad has had anything to do with these
bills being drafted. This issue is important and is part of our history. | would like to talk
about what has happened along the way. | think it is very important that we find out what
the truth is. | would push for you to keep this alive until we can get some of the answers.
The big 10. If we keep the logo we can’'t. Where did that come from? We have heard that
big sky has objections. That is rather strange when they proudly announced that UND was
going to be a part of it that they displayed the logo. | can understand why the board of
higher education, the chancellor, and the president of the university would like to have this
controversy go away. The truth will show that the chancellor did tell Dr. Kelly before he
came on to the campus, that the chancellor would handle this name and iogo issue so the
president wouldn't have to do that. | was asked by some of the students about 10 years
ago if | would help them because they wanted to keep and build a case for keeping the
logo. | said yes | would help them. With that they organized a committee for understanding
and respect. When you think about this, if that name is taken away does it not mean a loss
of identity? Did the NCAA truly get the true picture? Here was | think happened. There were
two conflicting things at that time or if they didn’t conflict were part of picture. 1 was desire
by board of higher education and the chancellor to remove this to get it away, and so from
that time on it was the effort to reach that objective. When the NCAA had their reps come to
campus they went through the Ralph Engelstad arena and they identified what needed to
be taken out of that facility. You know who was missing in that? People from Standing Rock
and people from Spirit Lake are missing from that. Lets find the truth behind these issues.
What did the NCAA hear? Did they hear the truth or something else? Was the chairman of
the NCAA retaliating against Ralph Engelstad who he thought was trying to dictate without
knowing the full story? We need more time before we make a decision on this.

Gordon Caldis: | am an attorney. | graduated from UND with a business and law degree. |
represent no party and erg we follow established law. | found a body of case laws of Indian
names and logos associated with athletics just as with UND. The laws | found approved
the upholding of the usage of the logos. | found UND has a copyright. A copyright will never
be given unless it is found not to be discouraging. | found that the word “fighting” was
allowed and found in many copyrights. In all this law it has been upheld. Stare decisis: in
legal terms it means it's been decided. The doctorate of this is to stand by decided cases
to uphold precedence and to maintain former adjudications. The doctrine of stare decisis
rests on the principle that law should be fixed. If the UND logo case had not been settled
out of court, the court and jury would have had stare decisis for the approval to use the
nickname and logo. We have the Department of Higher Education. It had received
opposition and complaints. The US Department of Education made inspections at UND and
made no sanctions at UND. This has jurisdiction over all colleges and universities in the
US. They made no such findings at UND of discrimination etc. It is clear that the UND logo
case could have been stare decisis and the usage approved. I've also researched the
constitution and bylaws of the NCAA. Its policy has yet to prove it has authority to enforce
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its policy relative to UND. The NCAA policy has not been proved to have been provided to
NCAA convention. The legislature of the NCAA is the legislature as mandated by the NCAA
constitution. A subcommittee gave the report to sanction UND. However this report and
sanction has not been passed by the NCAA convention. Here is what the constitution of the
NCAA provides. The purposes of this association are to legislate by resolution of a
convention upon any subject of general concern. Now is the UND Ralph Engelstad arena
architecture? Is its name Sioux? Is that a general concern? | think not according to my
research. It certainly didn't go through the convention. | leave you with this. Make the
NCAA prove that this has been through convention and that it contains the policy provisions
we are confronted with.

Kris Casement: | am an avid fan of the Fighting Sioux, and alumni, and | attend a lot of
sporting events. For us growing up in ND, UND has given us alumni and sports fans alike a
greater appreciation of the culture. This has become a basis of what it means to be a
Fighting Sioux and the understanding of the heritage of where we come from and what is
expected of us. It is certain that UND continues to uphold the values, culture, and history of
this great Sioux nation. UND is recognized nationally as having one of the greatest Native
American program in the US. In doing so, UND reflects the importance and value they
place on their Native American culture and heritage. Never have | withessed or heard any
incident where the Fighting Sioux name or logo caused people to be treated hostile. UND is
teaching all of us the values of your culture including, courage, pride, and honor. Standing
Rock Tribal Council: why are you afraid to let your people vote? By getting rid of the name
it affects all of us. People know us as the Fighting Sioux much more than a UND alumni.
With the loss of the name, the history of the tribe will not be kept at the forefront. | ask you
to vote in favor of the bills in front of you.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions?

Rep. Corey Mock: You said you travel and see a lot of the games. Do they show the video
we saw earlier today on road games?

Kris Casement: No they don't.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: | do plan to ask this again but if the name goes away, is there
any reason to play that video at the home games anymore?

Kris Casement: | don't see a reason to continue that.

Sean Johnson: | testify today on behalf of myself as well as other UND alumni. | speak in
support of the disenfranchised members of Standing Rock. We've heard a lot of powerful
testimony today from many representing the people of these proud nations to whom the
name Fighting Sioux means so much more than those of us not of that culture could ever
fathom. It is because of the real Fighting Sioux that | have been motivated to fight for this
issue. | also choose to fight because no man, woman, or organization has the right to
characterize me or other arbitrarily as hostile and abusive simply because we share pride
of the member of our tribal nations and the Fighting Sioux. Yet the NCAA, UND, and the
Board of Higher Education would have you think otherwise. You are being approached to
right a terrible wrong. | assure you that we have all acted consistently but our arguments
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have been disregarded. The people of Standing Rock have also been disregarded. This
legislative assembly is providing the first honest opportunity for people to be heard. For
those that want to see the name change, one argument is that the name and logo are
divisive. It's hard to believe that since it has united so many of us on the goal to keep them.
These bills tell UND to wait until the people have been given opportunity to speak. It is our
duty to set conditions right.

Rep. Corey Mock: You mention the 1968 ceremony and you said nothing has happened
since to overturn that and yet | have the packet of resolutions from the Standing Rock
Sioux tribe governing entity. It has fourteen votes relating to the UND nickname since 1992.
Six of which are resolutions opposing the use of the nickname and logo. How do you
respond to that?

Sean Johnson: | would redirect your recollection on how there may have been a tribal
resolution. But | do know that nothing has overturned that 1968 ceremony.

Rep. Phillip Mueller: What would you have had the Board of Higher Education do? Simply
ignore the issue at Standing Rock?

Sean Johnson: The right thing to do is to take responsibility and work with the people to
get a decision. No vote is no decision.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: | will call on David Davidson to come forward with this
testimony.

David Davidson: Support. Testimony attachment 6.
Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Support?

LaVonne Alberts: | am an enrolled member of the Spirit Lake tribe. | come in support of
this. It is a name that people on the reservation are proud of. The majority of our children
say they want to be a fighting Sioux. That encourages them to go further with their
education. | don’'t understand these people at the university that don't like the name. The
Sioux are proud of this name. There are very few that don't and you will hear from them.
Sure there have been derogatory things said but it doesn’t reflect on the Sioux.

Rita Loon: | want this name to live on for my father. He sacrificed his Indian ways for
people of standing rock and the world he traveled. | want to see the name kept at UND.

Jerry Valters: | am a supporter of these bills. | have a son in fargo and | came across
some people that said that the people who called standing rock “indian givers.” That
ceremony was done to allow the university to use that nickname and | don't think it is right
to ask for that back. | am in support of these bills.

Reed Soderstrom: Attachment 7. | am an attorney and volunteered to help with Archie.
When | saw the efforts made by Archie, | had to join on this issue. | believe the state
legislatures’ involvement is necessary and important to protect your citizens in ND. Few
people understand what the Indian Civil Rights Act is. It states that no tribe shall silence the
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people from filing for grievances. Refer to attachment. What | hope you notice is the lack of
a vote from the people. We took this matter to the tribal court and you can hardly get into
the door of the court. Not only has the court said the 1969 ceremony has never happened.
This is the first forum they have had where someone is listening. | hope you will give a do
pass on ali three biils.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Seeing none thank you.

Jody Hodgson — Ralph Engelstad Arena: | strongly support these bills but especially HB
1208 and HB 1257. Smarter people than | will determine whether the legislature is the
appropriate place for this discussion. | applaud the efforts of those who brought this
forward. | have been involved in many discussions and meetings on this issue.
Unfortunately we weren't abie to secure a settlement agreement or approval or vote from
Standing Rock. Everyone involved in this is deathly tired and everyone has been impacted
by this. The NCAA has never said UND has to change the logo. They said if you don’t or
don'’t receive approval, there will be sanctions. |f the name and logo change, need new
uniforms and if it doesn’t, you still have to buy new uniforms. If we secure one of those and
we did not make the changes at the Ralph, we would not be able to host that championship
event and I'm not so naive to think that there aren’t other impacts. There could be potential
impacts and there are a ton of variables on this. One final comment | would like to make.
The NCAA agreement included an announcement where they said imagery could create
hostility. NCAA did issue a finding saying that there was no finding of that. | agree with that
100%. Reasonable people should be able to disagree on things but that doesn’'t mean we
need to change an 80 year tradition.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Was there nothing in the NCAA sanction that said Ralph
Engelstad Arena had to remove their logos. Is it your understanding that if the Ralph
Engelstad had the capacity, which to my knowledge they do not, to host playoff games,
and in particular the frozen four. Would they still be able to host those?

Jody Hodgson — Ralph Engelstad Arena: The capacity only comes into play for frozen
four. With regards to regional events there is no minimum capacity level. There is a
requirement to have a financial guarantee and obviously they want it to be big enough to
make them work. They award that to neutral site facilities. We've applied for those and
haven’t been able to get them.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Is it possible that, just because the sanction doesn't include it
now, a sanction in the future by the NCAA could say no games will be played in the Ralph
Engelstad Arena?

Jody Hodgson — Ralph Engelstad Arena: It could. Correct.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: So that means if you don't spend the 2.5 million to remove the
logos in the arena?

Jody Hodgson — Ralph Engelstad Arena: Correct.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: What is the cost to replace a facility like that?
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Jody Hodgson - Ralph Engelstad Arena: My best guess would be 250 million.

Rep. Corey Mock: How much revenue does UND stand to lose if we have an opportunity
to host post season play but have to forfeit in women’s hockey?

Jody Hodgson — Ralph Engelstad Arena: We haven’t hosted a women’s championship
yet. But | can say with NCAA event, they pay rent and whatever but the ticket costs go to
NCAA.

Rep. Corey Mock: Could you say it would be comparable to hosting a men’s?

Jody Hodgson — Ralph Engelstad Arena: It would nowhere near that. | think it would
probably be a 10-15 thousand dollar opportunity.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We were going to show the video of the unveiling of the Sitting
Bull statue but because of time we will pass on that, but will strongly recommend that
committee members view the video. With that | will call on Ryan.

Ryan Dunnigan — 8" Grade student from Cathedral: I've been a Fighting Sioux fan my
whole life. I'm not here to say the college is perfect. | was just at a Sioux hockey game and
they were very respectful. | think if you take away the nickname you are taking away a
great tradition and history. One of my lifelong dreams is to play hockey for UND and be a
Fighting Sioux. Please consider what you are taking away if you take away the logo.

Marilyn Faye Guenther Paulson Schoenberg: | have been fighting to save the Fighting
Sioux logo for a year and a half. | got signatures and took them to Standing Rock. | took
them to Chairman Ron His Horse Is Thunder and he refused to see me. So | asked to see
the head of the movement and it was Archie Fool Bear and | got involved with that. This
has been exciting to be involved in this.

Chairman RaeAnn Keisch: Questions? Support? Neutral?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: Neutral.
Testimony attachment 8.

Rep. Phillip Mueller: There were accusations of alleged efforts on the part of the board to
influence a negative response on the request to get approval. Can you comment?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | would
categorically deny that. | am on record at board meetings trying to get a vote. All our
meetings on record would indicate our board trying to get a referendum. If there was a
disagreement it was on the issue of UND athletics. They thought that prolonging of this
would be detrimental to athletics. The issue was the timeline on the process.

Rep. Karen Karls: | m curious prior to election of Chairman Murphy, did you or Chancellor
Goetz physically drive or go to standing rock or was it calls etc?
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Grant H. Shaft - Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | believe
Chancellor Goetz went out there. We had a lot of communication with Standing Rock.

Rep. Brenda Heller: In some previous testimony the person from Standing Rock in support
said the ceremony in 1969 trumps what any council can do or make a decision on. | was
wondering if there hasn't been another ceremony to change that, how can this even be up
for discussion?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: What | can tell
you is that tribal law is a very complex, confusing area of the law. What | understand is we
have had presentations giving us opposing views as to what that ceremony meant and
what it means in their constitution. | don’t think we have ever been able to resolve what that
meant.

Rep. Corey Mock: My first question goes to the Big Sky Conference. There are a lot of
serious implications moving beyone today. If any of these bills pass, what happens to
UND? Do we go back to 2005 and start over?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | would defer the
Big Sky to President Kelly. Iif this is passed the first thing to happen is we will be placed
back on a probation list. Beyond that there are a lot of issues. There was a settlement
agreement. | believe if the attorney general was here he could speak more on that.

Rep. Corey Mock: If we do violate the terms of the settiement agreement, what does that
do to UND in terms of signing contracts with other organizations?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: It probably just
puts us back the way we were with the NCAA. Obviously this affects the hockey events.

Rep. Corey Mock: Would these bills in any way effect UND’s current transition into division
one athletics?

Grant H. Shaft - Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | will defer again
to President Kelly.

Rep. Brenda Heller: it was mentioned in previous testimony that it is questionable whether
NCAA took this to their convention.

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | can tell you
that all the board members have looked at the materials and passed them on to the lawyers
looking at this. Unfortunately they've concluded that this process wouid not be fruitful.

Rep. Brenda Heller: You mean to take it to the convention it would not be fruitful?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education:Correct.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Say UND doesn't want to play the Minnesota Gophers
because we consider them pests. Anytime you have a school nickname you can find
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something derogatory. | have a problem with NCAA trying to come in and dictate what the
state of ND can do. They are an association. They are not government. | have a couple of
concerns. Earlier this week we heard a bill and if it passes it will take away the power of the
university president and give it to his subordinate. | received an email that says don’t do
that. It seems to me the board and the chancellor have now taken away the power of the
university. Why did the board feel in this circumstance that they were far superior when

determining what was in the best interest of the university and leaving the president out of
it?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: A reason some
other names are upheld is because they received permission from their tribes.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Tribes work in different ways. | think making phone calls is not
always the most effective way.

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | can answer
that we took that power because the president at UND at the time was planning to change
the logo so they removed the authority from him to preserve the nickname.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Do you think the legislature has the authority to pass these
bills?

Grant H. Shaft — Vice President, ND State Board of Higher Education: | think they do
but the constitutional authority would have to be decided on (inaudible).

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Unless provided for in statute.

Robert Kelly — President, UND: Neutral. Much of what | was going to say has been
addressed. | think it might be helpful to the committee to know that much of what you are
talking about was before | was president. When this was going on | got a letter directing
me to change the logo. A number of questions have been asked about the NCAA. | had a
conversation with a representative from the NCAA. We are dealing with a settlement that
was reached late in 2007. It was indicated that the settlement had been reached in good
faith and would continue to work with UND through the transition. There is still uncertainty
and it is that uncertainty that we need to address. it was also indicated that we could revisit
the issue but the NCAA would not be enthusiastic about this. There have been rumors that
| took this position and was told by SBHE to retire the nickname and logo and that is false. |
was given no assurances that this would be resolved soon.

Rep. Joe Heilman: Regardless of NCAA ramifications to athletics, how has this affected
other areas of the university?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: | think we have seen individuals ceasing their contribution
and others continuing. Where we have had some difficulty is with our attempts with private
institutions and commitments to help pay for transition costs.

Rep. Brenda Heller: How many people were hired at the university to retire the name and
logo?
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Robert Kelly — President, UND: None.
Rep. Brenda Heller: Is there any way we can prove that this was taken to the convention?
Robert Kelly — President, UND: [ believe we can find that out.

Rep. Brenda Heller: You said conversations with the summit continued after the decision
to retire. If you had decided to keep the logo would have the conversations or was it
because of the name and logo that they were halted?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: The state board did take action that it would be retired but
the conversation stayed open that if the tribes decided to approve it, then it would go back
and be approved. We were waiting for the full affirmation that we would be going through
full transition.

Rep. Brenda Heller: | guess my point was if you would have decided not to retire the logo,
what would those conversations been like with the summit? Would they have been
favorable to UND joining?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: | don't think the conversations wouid have been any
different.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: During the process of application was the name and logo a
part of it at all?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: That never came up because the application was
initiated after that.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Do you have a ballpark figure on who will pay for ali the
letterhead and all the changes that need to be made, and will it be made by the university
or who pays for it?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: | don't know. The letter to the NCAA was asking for a
prolonged time because of this. At the moment | do not know. | know we will have to go
through multiple revenue streams to pay for it.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: You have to be thin ing of a number. | honestly don't think we
can just say don’t know.

Robert Kelly — President, UND: | honestly don't know.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We've heard anywhere from 1 to 2 for removal from the Ralph
Engelstad.

Robert Kelly — President, UND: |don't know.
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Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We had a bill to freeze tuition so it looks to me if that bill
passes you wouldn't have that avenue to increase tuition to help pay the costs. Just a
thought for you.

Rep. Corey Mock: | was informed that UND track and field team wouid be traveling to
lowa State this weekend for a meet because of sanction at the University of Minnesota. Do
you know where this has happened aside from the NCAA sanctions?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: SD requested we cover the logo. There have been other
instances where we have had to do the same.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Will the Pride of the Sioux video continue to be played at all
the home games after the name goes away?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: One of the task forces that advise me on all issues like
this one will give me a recommendation on that. The other thing is that we have people
looking at rewriting some of the song.

Chairman RaeAnn Keisch: If UND comes under some budget constraints would they look
at reducing some of the Indian studies at the university because they would feel it was no
longer necessary?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: The central issue at UND is the education of our
students. We must provide higher education and opportunities for anyone wanting to come.

Rep. Bob Hunskor: [f your institution does end up retiring the logo, what is the reaction of
the Big Sky Conference?

Robert Kelly — President, UND: This is one of those uncertainty issues.

Jon W. Backes — President, SBHE: | understand fully the emotion that comes with this
issue. It is the popularity of the nickname and logo are a tribute to the matter in which the
UND has created and used that logo and used it in a dignified and respectful manner.
When we were asked to meet in Grand Forks and visit with the attorney general on this
lawsuit. | viewed the lawsuit document, the NCAA documents, the attorney general’s
advice, and it was shown to me that the NCAA will win and we will not. The attorney
general’s advice was that we were in the strongest negotiating position. | viewed throught
the attorney general’s advice that the negotiated settlement was the best deal that he could
get on the table. | came on the board in 2007, the meeting on the settlement was in 2007
and there were four new board members. All of us have significant UND connections and |
could fairly easily say we wanted the debate to work out in favor of keeping logo. We had a
problem. We had to solve the NCAA problem. Perhaps the university could go forward and
be on the ban list. Not a single school that has been on that list has remained on that list.
They have made the changes or got approval. As | appear here today | encourage this
debate. As you debate the issue, | ask you to seek a solution to the problem which is the
NCAA,

Rep. David Rust: Is there really an alternative to the NCAA?
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Jon W. Backes — President, SBHE: No | don’t. DO | think the laws of the US should make
the NCAA subject to the state laws? Yes | do. The US Supreme Court disagrees with my
opinion.

Rep. Corey Mock: Of any of those 17 institutions on the ban list, did any leave and join
another association?

Jon W, Backes — President, SBHE: None that | can think of.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Since we are the education committee, what does all this have
to do with education? Because we certainly know what it has to do with athletics but what
does it have to do with education

Jon W. Backes — President, SBHE: The athletic piece is an important piece of the
education in schools.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: You were talking about the laws. In Grant's testimony he
included the settlement agreement and mutual release and under governing law it says this
agreement shall be construed and enforced in connection with the laws of the state of ND.
So what does that mean?

Jon W. Backes - President, SBHE: It means the lawsuit was filed in ND.
Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: And that is all it means?

Jon W, Backes — President, SBHE: | think to the extent of their interpretation of the law
relating to the legislative and what prejudice means in ND verses what it does in Hlinois or
elsewhere.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: | think the final comment and question is that | really liked
what you said at beginning when you said we don’t disrespect the name and that it has
been held to the highest esteem in the state of ND. You can probably pick out an instance
in anything were something derogatory was said about you or something. | think what has
happened here is we are letting an association and other states dictate to us what they
perceive. If they would only set foot here in our shoes, they would know that isn't here. |
think that is where the frustration comes from.

Jon W. Backes - President, SBHE: | agree. | can't remember ever hearing the logo or
name being used in disrespect.

Rep. Brenda Heller: Someone else mentioned in testimony that it was questioned whether
the NCAA had received factual information on which they based their decision. Do you
know how they would receive that information and what was given to them?

Jon W. Backes — President, SBHE: What | know is that | read the policy when it came
out. | read the president's, at the time, response to it and it was strongly worded. He was
appalled that they would say that without stepping foot at UND.
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Rep. Phillip Mueller: If you would have been on the board at the time would you have
recommended the board stay out of this?

Jon W. Backes —~ President, SBHE: | think at that time the board needed to make that
decision. If | had to do it over again after the last four years, | would rather have had
someone make the decision, however it think we tried to make the best decision.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? We will take testimony in opposition.
Rep. Lonny Winrich: Oppostion HB 1263, 1257, and 1208. Testimony attachment 9.

Rep. Corey Mock: You mentioned you were a faculty member at UND since 1985. Do you
know the positions or have the faculty taken positions on the retirement?

Rep. Lonny Winrich: The University Senate has passed a number of resolutions opposing
the nickname.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: | find your statement on the second paragraph interesting that
the symbols, logo, and nickname have been controversial for over 25 years. | graduated
from UND and | don't ever remember that controversy. So my question is, is the
controversy among the faculty? Or is it among the campus?

Rep. Lonny Winrich: There are students and faculty here that could better answer that. it
was very much affecting campus life at the time | was there and there were a number of
facuity concerned with it.

Rep. Joe Heilman: With your experience with the logo and its affects on campus life, what
do you think the origins are of what is offensive and can you give examples?

Rep. Lonny Winrich: That is a difficult question. | think much of the negative behavior
surrounding the nickname stems from overzealous attempts to belittle athletic opponents. |
think it is largely incidental things that grow around this aspect of student life.

Rep. Karen Rohr: if the controversy has occurred for past 25 years, I'm sure the university
has policy and documentation of incidents. Do you have any idea of any documentation?

Rep. Lonny Winrich: There have been documented reports that | believe may be
connected with some of the petitions mentioned earlier. | do know that the most recent
accreditation report had a section that commented on the negative impact of the Fighting
Sioux nickname on academic instruction.

Rep. Karen Rohr: I'm talking about specific instances where students have come forward
with complaints.

Rep. Lonny Winrich: I'm not sure on that.
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Jesse Taken Alive: Attachment 10. | am a member of the Standing Rock Tribal Council at
Large. | am deeply offended by the comments made by our government today. To say we
don't listen to our people is horrible. We get up in middle of nights to go to peoples house to
help with suicide issues. I'm very offended by what has been heard here today. There are
reports of tribal members having a shot gun pulled on them at a stop light because of this
issue. it was said earlier that we don’t want to put the Sioux nickname side by side with
other schools because they are rodents with pests. In a meeting with another tribal
member | offered changing the name. | said lets go with the fighting Nazis. That was
disrespectful to say just as using the Sioux name is disrespectful. When our son was
threatened with this life, he wanted to attend UND. His mother almost died because the
threat on her eldest son. We've done this since 1992. Earlier this month we had a state of
the nations address. The point is lets have respect for each other. We have 6 local
communities telling us to hold our position. 1,109 signed a petition saying we don’t want
you to have a vote and they want us to keep our position. I'm concerned that our voices
haven't been heard or that they have been misconstrued. We have an eiders group in
Standing Rock. On April 6" the group made the same decision to uphold the opposition of
the name. | don’t want any native people or anybody to get hurt over this issue. Our son
loves UND so much but not the 1ogo. As Native American my perspective is that there is a
strong tendency to look at incidents. How many incidents does there have to be? There is
pain there. We don’t want this to be a divisive issue on our reservation. | appreciate the
reference to us as nations of peoples. The only ingredient we don't have is a currency. The
USA recognizes that with treaties. [If you look at the documents | attached, on the second
page motion 29 under the roll call vote, the individual listed there was one of those that
went out to UND in 1969. | didn't get an option to ask him why he changed his mind on the
issue but the vote says it all. Things change. We are trying to help people understand the
decision that was made and upheld since 1992 to oppose the Fighting Sioux nickname and
logo. How many tribal students saw their dreams thwarted because of this issue? For the
record | am asking that these bills be voted down in committee.

Vice Chair Lisa Meier: When your son had been threatened did you go to law
enforcement and issue a complaint?

Jesse Taken Alive: From what | know it was reported and nothing happened. The death
threat came across the internet at the time.

Rep. Corey Mock: It's been referenced that the 1869 ceremony blessing was important
and more sacred than this. Can you shed light on to what that blessing means to you and
what?

Jesse Taken Alive: The way of responding to the ceremonies is that when someone is
bestowed a name it is because of the friendship and respect. There is no way that they
trump the issue.

Rep. Dennis Johnson: When you have a 1,000 people that want to bring this to a vote
how do you represent them and let them have their say?
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Jesse Taken Alive: We have a counter petition of 1,109. And some that signed one
signed the other. We had more signers on the counter petition than on the petition to issue
a vote and we also had signatures from some of the same individuals on both petitions.

Rep. Joe Heilman: I'm trying to get my head around the two petitions. On one hand one
was to have a vote. The other was to support the decision on the council correct? |t
sounds to me like the petition and the petition to uphold the name are like two different
things.

Jesse Taken Alive: The motions made by the local governments, we used them to make
decisions. These local meetings are advertised. I've let people know the only meetings |
attend are meetings from the council that are open to the public.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: One question. It goes back to the video the Pride of the Sioux.
It seems hypocritical to play that video at home games because you would be using the
Sioux name in there and that is what is deemed as unacceptable. Doesn't it bother you a
little bit that that was a great history lesson and things like that will disappear? Or is it too
valuable to get rid of the nickname that it doesn't really matter?

Jesse Taken Alive: The video will go away probably but educating each other on cultures
shouldn’t go away. The nickname freezes us into history and says this is all they can be.
There are other venues where this can occur.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions?

Joseph McNeil: When | came on the tribal council this issue had been brewing for some
time. We are presently at 19 years that Standing Rock tribe has opposed the nickname.
How many years does it take? Then we had debate at Standing Rock. We cannot bind our
people by a ceremony. It is a bind between those individuals involved. There are questions
about that ceremony that was used. This is a serious emotional issue and all we can do is
pass another resolution. The constitution needs to be changed to allow an initiative drive.
Another thing is who is going to pay for this vote that is wanted? If we do have a vote then
will it come to a point that SD voters won’t have a choice to vote? | don't see this thing ever
ending. To the experiences you have had at UND. They are just that, your experiences
and not anyone else’s

Rep. Bob Hunskor: Does each district have a board to represent the people of that
district?

Joseph McNeil: The district has a commission, a secretary, treasurer, and commission
members.

Rep. Bob Hunskor: When the vote is given to the tribal council, is that a vote where each
person gets a vote or does someone represent?

Joseph McNeil: There are six at large and then the district representative would present
the minutes on the issue.
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Rep. Bob Hunskor: When the people vote, does each person get to vote within the district,
are those counted and then given to tribal council?

Joseph McNeil: (inaudible)
Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Opposition?

Chase Iron Eyes: What | see happening is the legislature playing lawyer games playing
with working to save the Sioux name. The attorney general has stated that he is concerned
with the constitutionality of each one of these bills. | think before you go on | would caution
you and | would like to see that analysis. If you pass the bills, taxpayer rescurces will go to
a lawsuit for after this fact. Athletics, students, and grants would be affected by this. You
would be authorizing a suit against the NCAA on sanctions they would impose. We would
be using taxpayer dollars for that. One of the bills authorizes an antitrust suit. | understand
the issue that ND has with the Fighting Sioux name. | can tell you that the day has ended
when Native Americans feel they have to live a second-class citizenship. Things are
changing and this name is going to change.

Rep. Lyle Hanson: | was wondering if you know that if one or two or all three of these bills
passed, it will not be the end even from the day the governor signed it. Whatever we do
here doesn’t end here today.

Rep. Corey Mock: You mentioned you had prepared remarks. Could you make that
available?

Chase Iron Eyes: | can do that.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: A comment for you. You asked a question if the state engages
in a lawsuit it is going to cost taxpayers dollars. We know the retirement of the name will
cost taxpayer dollars. Regardless taxpayer dollars will be spent on this initiative either way.
| think that is the answer to your question. We don't know how much but regardiess
taxpayer dollars will be spent on this initiative. Thank you for your testimony. Further
opposition?

Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: Opposition.
Testimony attachment 11.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Yesterday you stood before us and testified on a bili would
freeze tuition. So apparently you think that the legislature has the authority to do that, would
that be a correct statement?

[

Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: Yes.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: But what you are saying in the bottom of your third paragraph
is that if these bills were passed that they would further restrict the authority of the State
Board of Higher Education and UND. Doesn’t the university appreciate the appropriation
that is passed to fund UND?
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Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: Yes but | also have to
point out that in a hearing you had you pointed out that you legislators needed to make up
your minds whether it was your legislative role to micromanage the universities.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We heard President Kelly talk about this costing money. How
will the student body feel if their fees are increased in order to cover the cost for the
retirement of the nickname and is that something that has been discussed?

Evan Andrist - State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: I'm not aware of
what the students would feel about an increase in fees.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Or a tuition increase to cover the costs of retiring the name?

Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: | also feel they would
see a tuition increase either way if we retire the nickname or we don't. That is why we
support this in the student resolution. We don't know the costs of it will have if we pass
these bills.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: And we don't know the costs to retire the nickname. | ask
these questions is because you are a student and have we as parents failed you in the fact
that people have mentioned divisiveness and prejudices at the campus? When we were at
these schools we didn't feel these issues or prejudices. Did we forget as parents to teach
you tolerance? Did we forget as parents to make sure that you understood that there are
other people and diversity and we should all be tolerant of each other?

Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: | don't know if | could
answer that on behalf of all the parents.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: That is really not the question. The question is whether
students can’'t understand and appreciate the history? Is that what it is?

Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: | think the students
can. I'd also like to point out that there are, in some cases, people that don’'t have the same
teachings. | would ask how you would feel if you found out your child had written one of
those derogatory things. | think it is a lack of judgment on many cases.

Rep. Corey Mock: Can | have you confirm that the student senate did passed by a larger
margin?

Evan Andrist — State Governmental Affairs Commissioner, UND: They passed it by a
measure of 17 to 1.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Opposition?

Dr. Erich Longie: I'm one of the 33% that voted against the logo. It wasn't too long after
the logo was passed that we collected enough signatures for a revote. We still have a
petition with the 300 names that we have yet to turn in. The ceremony is not absolute.
There is no tribal council that could give something away forever and ever. | don't want to
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be categorized as a logo on anybody’s shirt. | don’t want to see sacred paint on faces of
non-Indian fans. One of the previous speakers said that Indian students from other tribes
shouldn’t be allowed to speak on this issue. | disagree. UND is not on tribal land. When
other tribal students get mistreated because of the nickname and logo they have the right
to speak up. The other thing | want to talk about is that it appears to me that no one has the
right to speak for me unless | give that permission. Did the ceremony of 1969 get
permission from everyone so that UND could use this name forever? Absolutely not and
who gives them permission to speak for me? Finally | would like to say what is going to
happen if one of these bills passes. | would say we are all going to lose. If you pass the bill
you will no longer be honoring us, you will be forcing us.

Rep. John Wall: Does your constitution allow you to have a referendum?
Dr. Erich Longie: Yes it would make the council hear it.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: | will make a comment. You should be a good role mode! and
mentor for the people on your reservation. They really ook up to people like you that have
gone on and received those degrees such as you did.

Dr. Erich Longie: | appreciate that.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Further opposition?

Franklin Sage: Opposition. Testimony attachment 12.
Chairman RaeAnn Keisch: Questions? Further opposition?
Carel Two-Eagle: Opposition. Testimony attachment 13.
Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Further opposition?

LaDonna Brave Bull Allard: You talked about never seeing any of the negativity at UND
towards us. | was there when the football players threatened me and attacked a young
Indian girl. In 1985 the students took over the cuitural center and held it. And you guys are
talking about 19907 And then you sit there and tell me these incidences didn’t happen? My
children suffer today. | cannot go on that campus and say | am proud of UND. I'm angry.
I'm hurt. UND has caused me many tears. When you hurt my children you hurt me. And
where were you when this was happening? You didn’'t hear anything? No because you
were in your little groups. Where were you when we stood there in 1989 to say one hour of
prayer for our people that upset the whole University? You tell us our lives are not
important. You tell us what we feel is not important and try to tell my nation you are going to
make rules for us. You cannot make a wrong a right. { have still not heard an apology for
what you did to my children. And | say this to you because you are our representatives. On
top of everything you have divided our nation. This logo promotes racism.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Opposition?

Margaret Scott: Opposition. Testimony attachment 14.
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Rep. Karen Karls: You are an enrolied member of the tribe?
Margaret Scott: | am an enrolled member of a tribe in Washington.
Rep. Karen Karls: Are you also citizen of ND?

Margaret Scott: Yes | vote in every election.

Rep. Karen Karls: | am also a citizen and | understand that you are a sovereign nation and
you have your own laws. Under our ND law we do have the right to petition our
government to redress grievances. Do you not have that under tribal law?

Margaret Scott: You'd have to ask tribal leaders that because every model is different.
Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Any further questions? Further opposition?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: Opposition. Testimony attachment
15.

Rep. Phillip Mueller: We have heard a number of things that are going on at the
university. What is happening at Florida State where they are called the Seminoles or
places like that? Do you have any background on these types of issues going on among
those campuses?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: No | don't but the situation is
different. The tribes | believe have agreed to the use.

Rep. Phillip Mueller: | don’t know if the tribes have agreed to it but what about what's
happening on campus?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: You are probably right. But the
diversity issue is one that is here today. We need to make sure our students remain
respectful in a culturally diverse world.

Rep. Joe Heilman: Do you feel the retiring of the logo will help with the racial tention
issues?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND indian Studies Department: Yes to some degree | do. | think if
we get rid of logo students will take Indian studies with less prejudice.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: What I'm hearing today is that the prejudice towards Native
Americans today is happing at UND but it doesn’t seem to be happening at the other
campuses? Or is just because we have the Indian studies and we have kind of made the
UND campus tailor to Indian studies as a focus?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: | think the same thing is going on
elsewhere but it is that we have a focal point with the logo. 1 think it has to do with the fact
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that the Fighting Sioux is there and is visible. We have a problem because so many
students don't understand what stereotypes are.

Rep. Bob Hunskor: Has the problem you listed in the testimony heightened since the
issue has come up about the Sioux logo?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: it would come up sporadically.
They haven't escalated.

Rep. Corey Mock: | wanted to point out we don’t have your packet.
Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: It will be distributed.

Rep. Karen Rohr: Has there been a qualitative study done that addresses the logo for
native and nonnative?

Birgit Hans — Chair, UND Indian Studies Department: Yes there has.
Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Further Opposition?

Leigh Jeanotte — UND American Indian Student Services: Opposition. Testimony
attachment 16.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Opposition?
William Crawford: Opposition. Testimony attachment 17.

Lucy Ganje — UND Department of Art and Graphic Design: Opposition. Testimony
attachment 18.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions? Further opposition?

Don Morrison: | did want to make a comment on the stamina of the committee members.
I'm an alumnus of UND. | had a great time when 1 attended and had an excelient education.
There are a lot of UND fans that really do want to change this name. There are
controversies and derogatory things going on at UND regarding the nickname and logo.
These things have been going on for decades. I've learned about opposition from my
Native American friends. The source of opposition on my part comes from Native
Americans and Native American students. Keeping this name means we will be here in 50
years. It is time for UND to have a new nickname that unites people.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: Questions.
Rep. Corey Mock: Has your organization taken a stance or is this personal?

Don Morrison: Personal.
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Rep. David Rust: | have a question. It would be that we have some Native American
schools and non Native American schools. Of the non Native American colleges and
universities could we get an enrollment count and the percentage?

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: I'm told that we can. Questions? We will close the hearing on
HB 1263, 1257, and 1208.

Submitted Testimony: Attachments 19, 20, 21, 22, and 23.
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Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We will open on HB 1208. What are the wishes of the
committee?

Vice Chair Lisa Meier: | move a do not pass.
Rep. Joe Heilman: Second.

Chairman RaeAnn Kelsch: We will take the roll.
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Chairwomen Kelsch and members of the Education Committee for the record my name is Mark
Dosch representing the 32" district of the great State of North Dakota.

I am here today to voice my support of HB 1263. As a 1982 graduate and alumni of UND and
the fighting Sioux, | felt compelled to co-sponsor this bill.

| believe one of mans greatest fears is to someday be forgotten - not remembered. We all
want to leave our legacy behind, either individually, or as a people. We often hear of the desire

to tell our stories, to teach our language and traditions, so it can be passed down from
generation to generation.

| remember returning to UND several years ago to attend a Hockey game. | was excited to see
the new Ralph Engelstad Arena. | remember standingin au as ! first saw the towering statue of
Sitting Bull lit in the night’s sky. | observed the sea of fans, thousands of them all dressed in
their fighting Sioux attire, proudly wearing their logoed attire (designed by the way by a Native
American artist). And then the moment | stepped into the stunning arena, adorned with the
Indian head logo inlayed into the marble floors and walls. What a first class facility 1 thought.
Then the moment | walked into the arena itself. The flood of memories of the countless number
of games | attended in the past, and the swell of pride | felt when the student section began the
cheer go Sioux go. The chants continued “Whe are we? We are the fighting Sioux. | felt at
home, a member of a family, a feeling of belonging. We were the fighting Sioux, age did not
matter, your sex did not matter, nor the color of your skin. We all were there for the same
reason, and that was to cheer our team to victory.

I was later shocked and saddened when the news came with the accusations of disrespect and
racism in connection of the use of the name the Fighting Sioux. How could that even be
possible? Had they never attended a hockey game? Had they never heard the cheers from the
thousands of students and fans proudly displaying the logo and cheering their team to victory?
| seriously doubt it, because if they did, they could have never come to that conclusion —never.
Especially if a minority feels it is important to preserve their image, to preserve their culture, to
preserve the memory of their people, for a people working to create a better relationship with

all the people of ND. My question is how could they and us stand by and allow all this to be
lost? Don't they and their leadership realize the consequences?



If the name and logo were dropped? Things like the removal of the proud statue of Sitting bull.
The indian head logo proudly imbedded in the tile of the Engelstad Arena to b e covered with
black paint, and jerseys and attire that once displayed the logo be removed from the shelves.
And perhaps the saddest thing is that with each passing year of new freshmen students none of
whom would be given the opportunity to cheer for the mighty Sioux, the once proud image and

name of the Sioux would soon be forgotten. How could this possibly be good for the Native
Americans of our state?

There is a saying that goes, be careful of what you which for, because it may just come true.
Perhaps this is what some may want,‘buic I do believe for many of the proud American indians
and for the 10s of thousands of UND grads, 1 believe this is not what they want. For | believe, it
is not about the color of one’s skin, but the spirit that is in our heart... the proud tradition that
we all share... for we are the Fighting Sioux.



TESTIMOMN ATRUWMENT 2

Testimony on HB 1257
Rep. David Monson

Chairman Kelsch and members of the House Education Committee, for the record I'm Rep.
David Monson of Dist. 10. District 10 is located in northeastern North Dakota along the
Canadian border not too far north of the Spirit Lake reservation.

| introduced HB 1257 for a number of reasons:

1. I'm a graduate of UND actually with two degrees from UND, so I'm a long-time Sioux fan.
| believe the Sioux name and logo show great respect and honor to the great people who
dominated the ND plains for many years. A school chooses names and logos they respect.

3. 1believe the Sioux name and logo help preserve our history and provide an opportunity for
people all over this nation to learn about ND and who the Sioux really are.

4. |feel the board of higher education and the chancellor were “bullied” into making a
decision to drop the name and logo by an outside entity, the NCAA. What really angered
me about this is the fact that the NCAA has a double standard which aliows some schools to
use Indian names and logos but not UND. This is akin to the UN criticizing the US for human
rights violations when they say nothing to China, Iran, and numerous others. How do you
defeat a bully? You stand up to them and face them head on. You don’t run away.

5. The most important reason | introduced this bill is because the voices of the majority of the
Sioux people at Spirit Lake and Standing Rock were ignored. Their voices went unheard.
Today, with these 3 bills, they get to have their voices heard. That’s what our legislative
process is all about. We're letting the voice of the people involved be heard.

6. | might add a last reason | introduced this bill. About a month ago | heard about a group of
people at UND who were not content with getting the board to retire the Sioux name and
logo. They were going to try to obliterate the memory of the Sioux off the entire campus. |
don’t know if that awoke the Viking blood in my veins or the Sioux spirit instilled in me at
UND, but those were fighting words! That was the final impetus for me to contact people
at Spirit Lake to ask if they wanted me to introduce a bill. They wanted the bill.

Each of the three bills before you today is different. Mine takes the stance that the only
people who should be able take the name and logo away are the people who gave the
blessing for UND to use the name in the first place. A handfu! of unelected people (the
board and chancellor) and an outside organization {the NCAA]} guilty of using anti-trust
bullying tactics should not decide. My bill aiso contains the emergency clause to stop the
process of retiring the name and logo as soon as possible. It also only makes reference to

the name “Sioux” and leaves the “fighting” connotation off. 1 felt that may be less offensive
to some people.



| have told Rep. Kelsch that since | have another bill up in another committee at the same time
as this one, | will be brief and respectfully decline to answer questions at this time. f you have
questions of me you can call me in at a later time. | will take a couple of minutes to try to head

off some questions and answer some of the ones people have already asked me as | talked with
them about the bill.

Some people asked, “Isn’t this bill too late? The decision has been made and we should just
move on.” My response is that it is never too late to right a wrong. The Sioux people were
wronged when the board and chancellor didn’t listen to their voices. Right can still be done by
passing this bill. | would have introduced this bill in 2009 if | had dreamt the board and
chancellor would have made their decision in the manner in which they did. Had | introduced
this bill in 2009, | have little doubt that some would have thought the bill was too soon.

Some people have said that only the higher education board has the right to decide this issue.
I've even heard some people say passing these bills would be unconstitutional. Well, I say that
the board of higher education may be in the constitution, but they aren’t one of the three
branches of government. The legislature is the branch of government that is charged with
making laws. We have an entire volume of laws passed by the legislature that pertains to all
sorts of higher education as well as K-12 education issues. And, | might add, every bill we pass
is constitutional until 4 of 5 Supreme Court Justices say otherwise.

Some people say using the Sioux name and logo is disrespectful. In all my years as a Sioux fan
and UND student, I've seen only second hand evidence reportedly given on this issue. Any
instances I've heard about have been handled in a very positive way by the faculty and
administration at UND. They've used that as a “teachable moment’. Probably the most
disrespect shown the Sicux people was when their voices were ignored, and it was decided to
retire the Sioux name without regard for the wishes of the majority of the Sioux people.

One last comment I've heard is that the athletes may be hurt if this bill passes. | know others
here are much more gualified than | to refute that claim and will do so. However, | wouid like
to say that | believe if the Sioux name goes away, the ability to raise money from UND alumni
for scholarships and other programs will be seriously diminished.

There are many who follow me who wish to have their voices heard. They are the real experts
on this issue. Please listen to them and consider their wishes to keep the Sioux name and logo.
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TESTIMONY ATTRCHMENT 3

TESTIMONY OF DAVID HOGUE REGARDING HOUSE BILLS 1208, 1257, and 1263

House Education Committee
January 26, 2011

4:00 am

Good Morning Madam Chair Kelsch and members of the House Education

Committee. My name is David Hogue. [ am a North Dakota Senator representing

District 38, which includes Northwest Minot and the city of Burlington.

| have no testimony in favor of or in opposition to these three bills, but 1 do offer
testimony in support of the legislative assembly’s constitutional authority to pass into
law any one or all three of these bilis. | would not have thought testimony about your
constitutional authority to act necessary or even useful to your committee, but after
receiving several emails, correspondence, and two editorials on the subject, I'm

persuaded some review of the North Dakota Constitution would be useful to your

committee.

| think the tipping point for my decision to offer testimony on this subject was a
column in a local paper that asserted the North Dakota State Board of Higher Education
is the fourth branch of government under the North Dakota Constitution and that the ND

Legislative Assembly has no constitutional authority to consider the subject matter in

these three bills.
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I want to briefly examine both the structure and text of the North Dakota
Constitution to demonstrate that both the Legislative Assembly and the State Board of
Higher Education have policy making authority over our institutions of higher education,
but the ultimate and final authority rests with the Legislative Assembly, which holds sole

possession of the right to authorize or limit the expenditure of funds for any purpose on

every state institution of higher education.

Let’s start with the structure of our Constitution. Our Constitution is divided into
articles and sections. The Articles are reserved for major subjects. The structure is
attached to this written testimony. Articles IV, V, and VI relate to the Legislative,
Executive, and Judicial branches, respectively. The duties, qualifications, and authority
of each of these three branches is set forth in a separate Article. There is no mention of

a branch of higher education. There is no "Board of Higher Education” Article or even

an Article devoted to Higher Education. .

Article Vill, stated as the "Education” Article describes the duties of the
Legislative Assembly with respect to education at every level,, the State, and the board
of Higher Education with respect to education generally. There are eight sections in the
Education Article and the Board of Higher Education is referenced in section 6 and 7.

The Legisiative Assembly is referenced in sections 1, 2, 4, and 6.

While the structure of the ND Constitution is helpful generally in understanding
the interrelationships between the instruments of our state government, the actual

language—the text of the constitution—also makes clear that Legislative Assembly and
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the board of Higher Education share policy making authority within the realm of higher

education. Let's look specifically at Article VIIL.

Section 2 instructs the Legislature to establish a free public education system but
gives the Legislative Assembly the authority to set tuition and fees an higher education
institutions. As you well know Madam Chair, the Legislative Assembly has ceded its
constitutional authority to establish tuition to the state board of higher education. Of
course, Madam Chair, that was not an irrevocable grant to the Board of Higher
Education. The Legislative Assembly retains the prerogative to change its mind, and to

reclaim its constitutional authority to establish tuition and other charges for higher

education.

Section four of the Education Article directs the Legislative Assembly to take all

necessary steps to provide a uniform system of education.
| want to draw your attention to section five. That section reads:

“Section 5. All colleges, universities, and other educational institutions, for the support
of which lands have been granted to this state, or which are supported by a public tax,
shall remain under the absolute and exclusive control of the state. No money
raised for the support of the public schools of the state shall be appropriated to or used
for the support of any sectarian school. “[Emphasis added.]

Note the boldface language that the institutions will remain under the "absolute

and exclusive control of the state.” The authors of the constitution used the words
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“apsolute and exclusive” to denote that the state could never surrender control to a
political subdivision, the US government, or a private sector entity.

Now lets go to section six which relates to the Board of Higher Education. Does
that section give the Board “absolute and exclusive” control of higher education? No,
Madam Chair, it does not. |

Section six provides the Board with “full authority.” in section 6(6){(b}, the
Constitution gives clear description of the relative powers of the Board of Higher

Education and the ND Legislative Assembly. That section reads in relevant part:

The said state board of higher education shall have full authority to organize or
reorganize within constitutional and statutory limitations, the work of each
institution under its contro!, and do each and everything necessary and proper
for the efficient and economic administration of said state educational
institutions. [Emphasis added.]

Again, note the boldface language that the board of higher education can

organize or reorganize each institution within “statutory limitations.” Madam Chair, as

you well know, “statutory limitations” come exclusively from the statutes enacted by the

Legislative Assembly.

From these constitutional provisions, two things seem clear. First, if the
Constitution wanted to grant “exclusive” contro! of higher education institutions to the
Board of Higher Education, it most assuredly would have done so in Article VIii, Section
6. It used the phrase “absolute and exclusive” control to make clear that the state must
always be in charge of our institutions of higher education. Second, the board of higher

education has “full” authority to govern the higher education institutions, but that
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authority is not “exclusive” and must yield to statutory limitations the Legislative

Assembly might choose to enact.

The checks and batances incorporated into our state constitution are not novel or
fimited to the interp1a§ hetween the Board of Higher Education and the Legislative
Assembly. For example, if the legislature disagrees with the way the North Dakota
Supreme Court has construed a statute, the Legislative Assembly is free to change that
judicial interpretation by changing the statute.  This review and legislative reaction to

judicial decisions is a normal, healthy development in our state democracy.

For another example, when a member of the executive branch seeks to expand
its authority or to regulate in a different way, it will, by constitutional necessity, seek the

approval of the Legislative Assembly through a statutory measure.

Madam Chair, this concludes my written testimony.



ARTICLE VIl
EDUCATION

Section 1. A high degree of inteliigence, patriotism, integrity and morality on the part of
every voter in a government by the people being necessary in order to insure the continuance of
that government and the prosperity and happiness of the people, the legislative assembly shall
make provision for the establishment and maintenance of a system of public schools which shall
be open to all children of the state of North Dakota and free from sectarian control. This

legisiative requirement shall be 1rrevocable without the consent of the United States and the
people of Notth Dakota.

Section 2. The legislative assembly shall provide for a uniforrmn system of free public
schools throughout the state, beginning with the primary and extending through all grades up to
and including schools of higher education, except that the legislative assembly may authorize
tuition, fees and service charges to assist in the Tinancing of public sthools of Tigher education.

Section 3. In alt schoals instruction shall be given as far as practicable in those branches
of knowledge that tend to impress upon the mind the vital importance of truthfulness,
temperance, purity, public spirit, and respect for honest labor of every kind.

Section 4. The legislative assembly shall take such other steps as may be necessary 10

prevent illiteracy, secure a reasonable degree of uniformity in course of study, and to promote
industrial, scientific, and agricultural improvements.

Section‘s. All colleges, universities, and other educational institutions, for the support of
which lands have been granted to this state, or which are supported by a public tax, shall remain
under the absolute and exclusive control of the state. No money raised for the support of the

or used for the support of any sectarian
school.

Section 6.

1. A board of higher education, to be officially known as the state board of higher

education, is hereby creatad for the control and administration of the following state
educational institutions, to wit:

a. The state university and school of mines, at Grand Forks, with their substations.

b. The state agricuttural college and experiment station, at Fargo, with their

substations.
¢. The school of science, at Wahpeton,

The state normal schools and teachers colieges, at Valley City, Mayville, Minot,
and Dickinson.

e. The school of forestry, at Botlineau.

f.  And such other state institutions of higher education as may hereafter be
established.

The state board of higher education consists of eight members, The governor
shall appoint seven members who are qualified eleciors and taxpayers of the
gtate, and who have resided in this staie for not less than five years

immediately preceding their appointments. These seven appointments are
subject to confirmation by the senate.
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The governor shall‘appoint as the eighth member of the board a full-time
resident student in good academic standing al an institution under the
jurisdiction of the state board. Except for the student member, no more than
two persons holding a bachelor's degree from a particular institution under the
jurisdiction of the state board of higher education may serve on the board at
any one time. Except for the student member, no person employed by any
institution under the control of the board shall serve.as a member of the board
and no employee of any such institution may be eligible for membership on the
state board of higher education for a period of two years following the
termination of employment.

The governor shall nominate from a list of three names for each position,
selected by action of four of the following five persons: the president of the
North Dakota education association, the chief justice of the supreme court, the
superintendent of public instruction, the president pro tempare of the senate,
and the speaker of the house of representatives and, with the consent of a
majority of the members-elect of the senate, shall appoint from the list 1o the
state board of higher education seven members. The governor shall ensure
that the board membership is maintained in a balanced and representative
manner. .The tefm of office of members appointed to fill vacancies at the
expiration of said ferms shall bé for four years, and in the case of vacancies
otherwise arising, appointments shall be made only for the baiance of the term
‘of the_ meémbers whose  places are to’be filled. . A mermber may not be
appointed to serve for more than two terms. If a.member is appointed to fill a

vacancy and serves two or more years of that term, the member is deemed to
haye served one full term. .

In the event any nomination made by the governor is not consented to and
confirmed by the senate, the governor shall .again nominate a candidate
selected from a new list. The nomination shall be submitted to the senate for
confirmation and the proceedings shall continue until an appointee has been
confirmed by the senate or the session of the legislature has adjourned.

If .a ferm expires or a vacancy occurs when the legisiature is not in session, the
_ governor may appoint from a list selected as provided, a member who shall
sérve until the opening of the next session of the legislature, at which time the
appointment must be certified to the senate for confirmation. If the appointee is
not .confirmed by the thirtieth legislative day of the session, the office shall be
" deemed vacant and the governor shall nominate another candidate for the
office. The same proceedings shall be followed as are set forth in this section.
If the legislature is in session at any time within six months prior to the date of
the expiration of the term of any member, the governor shall nominate a
successor from a Iist‘;selgcted__ as above set forth, within the first thirty days of
the session and upon confirmation by the senate the successor shall take office
at the expiration of the incumbent's term. No person who has been nominated
and whose nomination the senate has failed to confirm is eligible for an interim
appointment.  On or before July first of each year, beginning in 1995, the
governor shall appoint a student member from & list of names recommended
by the executive board of the North Dakota student association for a term of

one year, beginning on July first. A student member may not serve more than
two conseculive terms.

The members of the state board of higher education may only be removed by
impeachment for the offenses and in the manner and according to the procedure
provided for the .removal of the governor by impeachment proceedings.

Each appointive member of the state board of higher education, except the student
member, shall receive compensation set by the legislative assembly for the time
actually spent devoled (o the duties of the member's office. Al members shall
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receive necessary expenses in the same manner and amounts as other state
officials for attending meetings and performing other functions of their office.

The legislature shall provide adequate funds for the proper carrying out of the
functions and duties of the state board of higher education.

- a.

The state board of higher education shall hold its first meeting at the office of
the state board of administration at Bismarck, on the 6th day of July, 1939, and
shall organize and elect one of its members as president of such board for a
term of one year. It shall also at said meeting, or as soon thereafter as may be
practicable, elect a competent person as secretary, who shall reside during his
term of office in the city of Bismarck, North Dakota, Said secretary shall hold
office at the will of the board. As soon as said board is established and
organized, it shall assume all the powers and perform all the duties now
conferred by law upon the board of administration in connection with the
several institutions hereinbefore mentioned, and the said board of
administration shall immediately upon the organization of said state board of
higher education, surrender and transfer to said state board of higher education
all duties, rights, and powers granted to it under the existing laws of this state
concerning the institutions hereinbefore mentioned, together with all property,

deeds, records, reports, and appurtenances of every kind belonging or
appertaining to said institutions.

The said state board of higher education shall have full authority over the
e I . .

limit, or modify the courses offered at the several institutions. In furtherance of
its powers, the state board of higher education shall have the power fo delegate
to its employees details of the administration of the institutions under its control.
The said state board of higher education shall have full authority to organize or
feorganize Wilhin_consiutional and_statluiory Tmiatons, —&d
“nstitution under its control, and do each and everything necessary and proper

for the efficient and economic administration of said state educational
institutions.

Said board shall prescribe for all of said institufions standard systems of
accounts and records and shall biennially, and within six (6) months
immediately preceding the regular session of the legislature, make a report to

the governor, covering in detail the operations of the educational institutions
under its control.

It shall be the duty of the heads of the several state institutions hereinbefore
mentioned, to submit the budget requests for the biennial appropriations for
said institutions to said state board of higher education; and said state board of
higher education shall consider said budgets and shall revise the same as in its
judgment shall be for the best interests of the educational system of the stale;
and theraafter the state board of higher education shall prepare and present to
the state budget board and 1o the legislature a single unified budgst covering
the needs of all the institutions under its control. "Said budget shall be
prepared and presented by the board of administration until the state board of
higher education organizes as provided in subsection 6a." The appropriations
for all of said institutions shall be contained in one legislative measure. The
budgets and appropriation measures for the agricultural experiment stations
and their substations and the extension division of the North Dakota state

university of agriculture and applied science may be separate from those of
state educational institutions.

The said state board of higher education shall have the control of the
expenditure of the funds belonging to, and allocated to such institutions and
also those appropriated by the legislature, for the insfitutions of higher
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education in this state; provided, however, that funds appropriated by the
legislature and specifically designated for any one or more of such insfitutions,
shall noi be used for any other institution.

7. a. The staie board of higher-education shall, as soon.as practicable, appoint for a
term of not to exceed three (3) years, a state commissioner of higher
education, whose principal office shall be at the state capitol, in the city of
Bismarck. Said commissioner of higher education shall be responsible to the

state board of higher education and shall be removabie by said board for
cause.

b. The -state commissioner of higher education shall ‘be a graduate of some
reputable ‘college or university, and who by training and experience is familiar
with the problems peculiar to higher education.

¢.  Such commissioner of higher education shall be the chief executive officer of
said-state board of tiigher-education, and shall perform such duties as shall be
prescribed by the'board. B

B. This .constitutional provision shall be ‘self-executing and shall become effective
without the necessity of legislative action.
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CONSTITUTION OF NORTH DAKOTA

Article
Preamble
1.  Declaration of Rights
1 [Inalienable rights]
2 [Inherent political power]
3 [Freedom of religion)
4.  [Freedom of speech]
5.  [Freedom of assembly]
6
T
8
9

[Involuntary servitfude)
[Freedom of employment]
[Searches and seizures]
.. [Administration of justice]
10. iIndictment or information]}
11.  [Bail] .
12, Rights of the accused]
13.  [Trial by jury]
14. [Habeas corpus)
15. [Imprisonment for debt]
16.  [Private property not taken without just compensation]
17.  [Treason]
18.  [Bill of attainder — Ex post facto laws — Impairment of
‘contract obligations)
19.  [Military subordinate to civil powerl]
20. [Rights retained]

21, [Privileges or immunities]
29, [Uniform operation of laws)
23.  [Supreme law of the land)
24.  Tinterpretation of constitution)
II.  Elective Franchise :
1. [General election and elector qualifications]

2. [Elector disqualifications)
I,  Powers Reserved to the People
[Powers reserved]
[Petition]
{Circulation]
iBignature requirement)
[Submission]
[Certification)
{Judicial review]
[Enactment)
[Initiated constitutional amendment)
10. [Recalll
IV.  Legislative Branch
1. (Composition of senate and house of representatives — Des-

ignation as legislative assembly)
2. {Senatorial districts — Apportionment)

W oo -3 G U1 LoD

85




Article

v,

9.

10,
11.
12.

19
ok

14.
15.
16.
17.
19.
20.
43
44
48,

CONBTITUTION OF NORTH DAKOTA

[Election of senators and representatives)

(Terms of senators and representatives]

[Qualification of membears of legislative assombly)

[Disgualification due to office held)

[Terms of office — Organizational m cebing — Sexsion meeling
date — Session length — Adjournment]

[Presiding oflicer of house of representatives]

{Bribery|

[Disqualification due to eriwninal act)

[Vacancies)

IQuorum — Judge of qualifications -— Ruleg of proceedings)

JJournals — Recorded vote — Voting by lieutenant governor
— Bill passage — Effective date of acts — Laws to imple-
ment constitution — Local or special 1aws)

[Open sessions and meetings] _

{Immunity of members from arrest — Freedom of debhate)

(Future congtitational amendments]

17 and 18. [Repealed]

{Renumbered]

20 to 46. [Repealed]

IRepealed.]

and 45. [Repealed )

[Repealed.]

Executive Branch

12.
Judici
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P e
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[Governor — Executive powerl

{Election of state officials — Duties]

iJoint ballot for governor and lieutenant govarnor)
{Qualifications]

[Terms of office]

[Offices to be held in state capital)

{Powers and duties of governor]

[Power to Ol vacancy| _
[When bill becomes law — Veto power — Line-item veto)
{Bribery]

tLieutenant governor]

{Licutenant governor — President of sen ate]

al Branch

ldudicial power]

{Supreme court jurisdiction]

[Supreme court authorityl

[Supreme court quorum]

[Supreme court decisions]

{Appeals]

(Blection and terms of justices)

[District court jurisdiction]

[Election and terms of district court judges]
[Qualifications and restrictionsi
IMhsgualifications]

Retirement and removal)

26




Article

VIL

VIII.

X

12.1.
13.

CONSTITUTION OF NORTH DAKOTA

[Retirement and removal]
[Vacancies|

Political Subdivisions

O 0o B

o -1®

10.

11.

[Purpose]

[Political subdivisions)

[Counties]

iCounty seat)

[Annexation, merger, consolidation, reciassification, or disso-
lution of counties]

[Home rulel

[Optional forms of county government)]

[County services and functions — Term of elective offices)

[Election on form of county government)

[Service agreements]

[Utility franchise by cityl

Education

1.

2
3.
4.
5
3]

[Public education]

[Free public schools]

lInstruction in schools)
{Prevention of illiteracy]

[State control of higher education]
[Board of higher education]

Trﬁst Lands

o On o 03 B

e
-

12.
13

[ R {e s s QL]

[Common school trust fund — Institutional trust funds)
{Fund income apportioned among schools)

{Board of university and school lands)

[County boards of appraisall

[Sale of common schoel lands)

(Terms of sale of original grant school or institutional lands]
[Appraisal and sale of ousted institutional 1a11ds]
[Lease of grant lands]

{Claims o public lands)

[Sale of public lands)

[Protection of state school funds]

[Public institutions]

{Public institution lands)

Finance and Public Debt

PED 00130k w0

[Raising of revenue — Property tax prohibited]
[No surrender of tax power)

{Legal basis for taxes]

[Property assessment]

[Tax uniformity and exemptions)

Pell tax)

[Acreage tax for hail damage indemnification)
Umplementation of tax provisions)

[Hail tax fund)

[Sate medical center tax)

[Highway fund]

[State moneys — Appropriation requirement)
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CONSTI’I‘UT]ON OF NORTH DAROTA

Article
State debt]
4. [N atural TesouTee dev uh_a].m'nent honds)
15. '.'Puliticm subdivizion deht)
16, [Political cubdivision debt repayment]
17, \Bond endorsement Tuqui'r(;\,mnnt.c:l
18, [Public husiness
19. jOut-of-state grain terminal shevators]
50. (In-state grain terminad ghevators]
91. 1Coal development impach trost fund]

90, [Resources trust, fund)
23. [Payment for service in the Persian Culf theatre 0T in
Grenads, 1ebanon, o7 Pgnima areas of armed confiict]
24.. [l extraction tax revVENUes — Common achools trust fund —
. Foundation ald atabilization fund]

25. [Veterans’ postwar trust fund]

AT

1 (eneral Provigions
s 1. [Name and houndary of statel
E\ 2 1Creal seall
i 3. [Waters]
i 4, {Oath or affirmation)

5 {Open meetings!

g. |Open records)

1 {Emergency governmental operat'mns]

[Power of impeachmentl
[Trial of impeachmentl

10. {Officers subject to impeaclunentl
11, [Remov al of officers not subject to 'impeachmentl
19.  [Suspension of duties between impeachment and acquittal]
13. [Lieutenant OV ErnoT not to bry gOVernor)
14, [Service of copy of impeachmer_lt]
15. Ilmpeachment only oncel
16. [Composition of militial
17. [Organization of militial
18. {Active militial
19.  {Officers in militial
20. [Commissioned officers)
o1, [Militia forces privileges from arrest]
22, [Rights of debtors]
93, [Property rights of married women)
Dk, [Child labor]
05. |Games of chancel
26, [Compensation of elected officials)
27. [Right to ant, frap and fish)
28. Definition of Marriagel
L Clorporations Other Than Municipal

8.
9.
0

1. [Definition of corporation]
2. |Corperation laws)

3. [Repezﬂcdf]

4. Repealed.]
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[Corporations subject to eminent domain]
{Voting for directors or managers)

[Repealed.]
{Repealed.]
[Repealed.

[Local consent. for utility rights]

(Repealed.)
{Repealed.]
[Repealed ]
[Repealed.]
(Repealed.]
{Price fixing]
Repealed.]

14.
15.
16.
17.

Compact With The United States

1.
2.
3.
i, 4,
Transition Schedule
1. 1 to25.

[Land grants]

(Repealed]

[Toleration of religious sentiment]
IMilitary reservations)

[Continuation of provisions of Enabling Act}

PREAMBLE

We, the people of North Dakota, grateful to Almighty God for the biessings
of civil and religious liberty, do ordain and establish this constitution.

ARTICLE 1
DECLARATION OF RIGHTS

Section 1. All individuals are by nature equally free and mmdependent
and have certain inalienable rights, among which are those of enjoying and
defending life and liberty; acquiring, possessing and protecting property and
reputation; pursning and obtaining safety and happiness; and o keep and
hear arms for the defense of their person, family, property, and the state, and

for lawful hunting, recreational, and other lawful purposes, which shall not
be infringed.

Source: Const. 1889, Art. I, § 1; Initiated
amendment approved November 6, 1984 (S.1.
1985, ch, 702).

Note.

The section as originally adopted read:

“All men are by nature equally free and
independent and have certain inalienable
rights, among which are those of enjoying and
defending life and liberty, acquiring, possess-

89

ing and protecting property and reputation;
and pursuing and obtaining safety and hap-
piness.”

Commercial Paper Use.

Right te use commercial paper in a conpuner-
cial setting is not a fundamental right guar-
anteed by this section. State v. Goetz, 312
N.W.2d 1 (N.D. 1981), cert. denied, 455 U.S.
924, 102 3. Ct. 1286, 71 L. Bd. 2d 467 (1982).
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January 21, 2011

Honorable Al Carlson

State Representative

2548 Rose Creek Parkway South
Fargo, ND 58104-6699

Dear Representative Carlson:

This is in response to your request for information regarding the constitutional authority of the Legislative Assembly

to enact legislation affecting the State Board of Higher Education and the institutions under the authority of the
board. '

CONSTITUTIONAL AUTHORITY OF STATE BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION
Article Vill, Section 8, of the Constitution of North Dakota establishes a State Board of Higher Education to control
.and administer state institutions of higher education. Subdivision b of subsection 6 of that section states:

The said state board of higher education shall have full authority over the institutions under its control with the
right, among its other powers, to prescribe, limit, or modify the courses offered at the several institutions. In
furtherance of its powers, the state board of higher education shall have the power to delegate to its
employees details of the administration of the institutions under its control. The said state board of higher
education shall have full authority to organize or reorganize within constitutional and statutory limitations,
the work of each institution under its control, and do each and everything necessary and proper for the
efficient and economic administration of said state educational institutions. (emphasis supplied)

The plain language of subdivision b indicates the authority of the State Board of Higher Education is subject to
consfitutional and statutory limitations and does not exclude the Legislative Assembly from enacting legislation that
would affect the board or the institutions under its control.

The Legislative Assembly has enacted legislation that mirrors the constitutional language regarding the authority of
the State Board of Higher Education. That legistation is codified as North Dakota Century Code Section 15-10-11.

NORTH DAKOTA SUPREME COURT DECISIONS
The Supreme Court of North Dakota has generally addressed the authority of the State Board of Higher Education in
two recent decisions. However, the court has not directly addressed the issue of limitations on the authority of the
Legislative Assembly to enact legislation that affects the board or institutions under the control of the board.

In a 2009 case, Elfis v. N.D. State Univ., 2009 ND 58, 764 N.W.2d 192, the Supreme Court discussed the balancing
of the constitutional authority of the State Board of Higher Education and the authority of the Legislative Assembly to
enact laws generally for all its citizens. in its opinion, the court relied on a 1957 decision in which the court upheld
the constitutional authority of the university to dismiss faculty members. In arriving at its decision, the Supreme
Court expressed concern as to whether a statutory enactment may supersede the constitutional authority of the
State Board of Higher Education to hire and discharge its employees, but determined that the constitutional issues
need not be addressed. However, it further stated that there is some judicial precedent in others states which
indicates a "legislature may enact provisions giving certain rights to the employees of institutions of higher education
Although the Supreme Court did not address the constitutional issue, the dissenting opinion in the Eliis case pointed
out the majority opinion's "expansive reading of the constitutional authority of the Board, however, fails to
acknowledge that the Board is still subject to legislation. Article VI, § 8(6)(b) of the North Dakota Constitution

governed by boards with exclusive constitutional authority.”
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plainty states, in relevant part: 'The said state board of higher education snai nave i auuviny w vy e~
reorganize within:constitutional and statutory limitations, the work of each institution under its control, and do each

and everything necessary and proper for the efficient and economic administration of said state educational
institutions.™

In April 2010 the Supreme Court.addressed the question of whether the State Board of Higher Education couid be
enjoined from ordering the retirement of the University of North Dakota's Fighting Sioux nickname and logo before
the-final deadline. specified in-a settlement agreement hetween the National Collegiate Athietic Association and the
board.. In Davidson v. State, 2010 ND 68, 781 N.W.2d 72, the Supreme Court concluded the board had the
authority to order the:name change before the date specified in the settlement agreement. Again, the court quoted
the constitutional and statutory authority of the board to control the institutions of higher education. However, the
court had no need to fully address the extent of or limitations on the authority of the board under the constitution
because "[t]he plain language of the settlement agreement does not restrict the board's constitutional and statutory
authority to change.UND's nickname.and.logo, and we agree with the district court that nothing in the plain language
of the settlement agreement limits the Board's constitutional and statutory authority, or requires the board or UND to
continue using the nickname .and logo: throughout the:approval-period.” Because the question of the authority of the
policymaking branch of government to enact legislation which limits or affects the authority of the board was not
before the court, the court did not address that issue.

THREE COEQUAL BRANCHES OF GOVERNMENT .
Although there have been some assertions that the State Board of H1gher Education is the fourth branch of
government, Article X1, Section 26, of the Constitution of North Dakota is very clear that there are three coequal
branches: of:government.. Even:before that. provision was.adopted in 1982, the Supreme Court, in a long line of
decisions;. recognlzed that each-of the three branches,of government is. supreme in its sphere. The sphere of the
legislative branch is to enact policy. In furtherance of that constitutional responsibility, the Leqgislative Assembly has
regularly-enacted legislation that affects or regulates the institutions of higher education and the board. Title 15 is

filled with-examples cf the Legislative. Assembly limiting or placing conditions upon the authority of the State Board
of Higher Education.

It should also. be noted that Section 26 was enacted after the article that established the State Board of Higher

Education and:did. not include the board:as a fourth. branch of government, Thus, it is clear that although the State
Board of -Higher-Education is. constltut1onally created,. it is..not_a branch of government that is entitled to the

deference the three coequal branches of government offer each other when actlng within their spheres of
responstbmty ‘

e " PRESUMPTION! OF CONSTITUTIONALITY .

Each enactment of the Legislative Assembly is presumed to be constitutional. Furthermore, under Article VI,

Section 4, of the Constitution of North Dakota, lt takes four of the five Supreme Court justices to declare a state law
unconstltunonal

1

SUMMARY

The Constitution of North Dakota provides the State Board of Higher Education has authority over the state
institutions of higher education within constitutional and statutory limitations. Although the Supreme Court has
recognized the constitutional authority of the board, it has not specifically addressed the issue of the authority of the
Legislative Assembly to enact legisiation affecting the board or institutions under its control. The constitution
provides for three coequal branches of government, one of which is responsible for enacting policy. Although
const|tut|onally created, the State Board of Higher Education is not one of the three branches of state government
and is not an autonomous entity with the authority to act independently of legistative policymaking.

Sincere!

Counsel

JB/BNA- = -
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Prepared by the North Dakota Legisiative Councit
staff for Representative Carlson
January 2011

HISTORY OF THE FIGHTING SIOUX NICKNAME AND LOGO

This memorandum provides a chronology of the
events that have occurred since the inception of the
University of North Dakota (UND) ‘Sioux nickname and
logo. This memorandum includes excerpts and
information derived from an article written by
Mr. David Vorland entitied "The Fighting Sioux team
name and logo at the University of North Dakota: An
historical and contextual summary" and from an April
2010 article in the Fargo Forum entitied "Fighting
Sioux Timeline." This memorandum also includes a
list of those schools iocated on Indian reservations in
the state which use a tribal or tribal-related name as
their nickname, mascaot, or logo.

CHRONOLOGY OF FIGHTING SIOUX

NICKNAME AND LOGO

In Mr. Vorland's article, he notes that turn-of-the-
Century copies of UND's yearbook--the “Dacotah’-
reveal Indian imagery In use on the campus in the
university's earliest days at various events and
celebrations. He also noted that this was not unusual
given that the earliest settlers used Indian names to
name cities, waterways, geographic features, and
businesses, as well as the name of the state of North
Dakota itself. B

Athletic programs at UND date back to shortly after
the institution's founding in 1883. For many years, the
teams were known as the "Flickertalls.” Sometimes
the teams were referred to as the "Nodaks.”

1930s

In 1830 after the adoption by the then North
Dakota Agricultural College of the nickname "Bison"
and a campaign led by the student newspaper, the
university's Athletic Board of Control adopted the
name "Sioux." During a decade when UND athletic
teams dominated the North Central Conference, the
new name quickly became popular at UND.
Beginning in 1937, the "Nickel Trophy," featuring an
Indian image on one side and a bison on the other,
was awarded to the winner of the UND-North Dakota
State University football game. Similarly, a "Sitting
Bull' trophy was awarded to the winner of
UND-University of South Dakota rivalry. The addition
of the word "Fighting," modeled after the University of
Notre Dame's "Fighting Irish,” occurred later.

1950s and 1960s

During the 1950s and 1960s, graphic symbols with
Indian themes were used at UND for athletics as well
as in the nonathletic reaim. "Sammy Sioux," a cartoon
character, appeared on coffee cups and other items.
A men's pep club—the "Golden Feather” organization--
centered on Indian themes. For many years female
basketball cheerleaders wore fringed buckskin
dresses and feather headdresses. Until the

mid-1980s, the university's elite men's chorus—the
Varsity Bards—entered and departed each concert
venue while "war whooping” at the tops of their lungs.
Indian themes were commonly depicted in the giant
ice sculptures created annually by UND's fraterities
and sororities as part of the now defunct "King Kold
Karnival” In 1969 Sioux Indians from the Standing
Rock Reservation gave UND President George
Starcher the name "Yankton Chief' in a campus
ceremony and -authorized the use of the name
Fighting Sioux by UND athietic teams.

1970s ,

The administration of UND President Thomas
Clifford (1971-92) began with protests and violence
directed initially against a fratemity that had erected
an obscene ice sculpture with a Native American
theme. President Clifford negotiated with the
aggrieved parties, including leaders of the national
American indian Movement, and agreed to eliminate
those aspects of the use of Native American imagery
that were clearly demeaning and offensive. Nearly all
of the Indian-related logos and symbols, including the
popular "Sammy Sioux" caricature, were no longer
permitted o be used.

1976

A new geometric Indian head fogo was introduced
in 1876 and adopted for most athletic purposes. The
Chicago Blackhawks logo, which had been used by
the hockey team since the late 1960s, however, was
retained. Presldent Clifford also Insisted that Indian
imagery be used with respect, and took steps to
ensure that students, fans, and others were aware of
UND policy regarding the symbols. He also
intensified UND's efforts to include a focus on Native
Americans in the curriculum, initially through a minor
in Indian Studies, and to develop yet more programs
to assist students.

1977

In 1977 President Clifford convinced the
Legislative Assembly to provide permanent state
funding for both a new academic Department of Indian
Studies and a separate Native American PrOQrams
Office to coordinate support services for Indian
students. President Clifford also encouraged the
Chester Fritz Library to build upon its important
collection of Indian documents and artifacts.

1990s and Beyond
President Clifford's last public statement on the
use of the name and symbol was published in a
newspaper interview on March 15, 1991: "l just don't
see the reason for changing it right now. The very

. leaders of the Sioux Nation supported that. When the
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leaders of the Sioux Nation come and tell me they
don't want it, I'll respect that.”

1992-93

In 1992, shortly after the beginning of the Kendail
Baker administration (1992-99}, an incident involving
racial slurs and rude gestures aimed at Native
American students and children occurred during
UND's homecoming ;parade. Following the incident,
‘the StandingiRock Sioux Tribal:Council requested that
UND -change the team name, and -the University
Senate approved aresclution’ opposing .continued use
of “the Fighting -Sioux ‘name: - President "Baker
-convened two well-attended " university-wide forums
and visited the-:North :Dakota reservations:{o ‘seek
input. President Baker announced his decision on
July 27, 1993, that UND would not change the name;
ihowever, -it ‘would drop ‘theBlackhawks logo. A

committee was formed to propose steps that could be’

.taken by:the:athletic department to ensure respectful
use:xof-the team name. One result:was a mandatory
public address announcement ‘before every athletic
event. _President Baker also stated that UND would
sranew.its.commitment to cultural diversity with ‘new,

."posmve -activity :on ‘many fronts and would leave open
{

thequestion: of ‘the team name for further dlscussion
:and educatton :

1999 Co
In 1999 President Baker's last public statement on

the issue was read into the record at a leglslatlve _

~hearingiduring the legislative 'session:

A controversy .over the use of the Sloux :
team name was among the first issues'that -
faced me when | came to North Dakota in
1982.- ‘After much conversation and
consultation, it was my conciusion that there
was no - consensus on this issue, not even
among Native Americans. | decided,
-therefore, that the respectful use of the team
name -should -continue and, indeed, that the
‘appropriate use of jthe .name . couild :be".a
positive influence in helping UND encourage
respect and appreciation for diversity in all of
its forms. Although some individuals
disagreed.with me then, as they do today, this
remains my position.on the issue.

in closing, let me be very clear: Although
the .approach UND took regarding the team
name was and.is, in-my view, .an appropriate
one, | also have stated on numerous public:
occasions that the issue remains on ‘the
agenda for dialogue, discussion, and learning:

The North Dakota House of Representatives, in
rejecting 1999 House Concurrent Resolution
No. 3024, voted 71-26 against urging UND to drop its
nickname. The -UND Student Senate approved a
motion asking UND to drop the name, but the student

president vetoed it. Alscin 1999, a new Indian :head
Inain was nnveiled craatad hv nntad ‘Native Amariran

January ‘201.*. .

alumnus and benefactor, announced a gift of
$100 miilion for.a new hockey arena and other
projects at UND,

2001

After hearing that UND might opt for a new name
and logo in the middie of the new hockey facility's
construction period, Mr. Engelstad wrote a letter to
UND President Charles Kupchella in which he
threatened to abandon the project if UND dropped the
Fighting Sioux nickname. Subsequently, the State
Board of Higher Education voted 8-0 to keep the
nickname and a newly designed logo.

Also ‘in 2001, the United States Commission on

-Civil Rights:called for an -end to Indian nicknames -at

non-Indian schools. In August 2001, workers scraped
a Sioux Indian head logo from the floor of Hyslop
Sports Center after President Kupchella ordered its
removal.

In October 2001, the Ralph Engelstad Arena was
dedicated.

2005

On August 5, 2005, the National Collegiate Athletic
Association (NCAA) formally announced the adoption
of -a.policy ‘forbidding its member institutions from
employing “"hostile and abusive mascots,
nicknames .or imagery" -during NCAA championship
play. President of the NCAA, Mr. Myles Brand, stated

that.the .policy .was .designed to promote the core
values expressed in the NCAA Constitution, including

"cultural  diversity, . ethical . sportsmanship and
nondiscrimination.” The NCAA claimed that the
impetus for the policy was a combination of NCAA
member feedback, a report from the United States
Commission on Civil Rights dealing with Native
American imagery in sports, and recurring NCAA
debates over the use of the Confederate flag in simiiar
situations. Eighteen institutions were initially found by
the NCAA to be using hostile and abusive Native
American references, causing them to fall within the
scope of the policy.

Under the policy, NCAA teams were immediately
prohibited from -wearing uniforms with "hostile or
abusive" indicators at NCAA championship events.
Effective February 1, 2006, colleges and universities
having such Native American mascots were to be
prohibited -from hosting any NCAA championships at
their facilities. By August 1, 2008, all schools with
hostile or abusive .mascots or references on their
cheerleader, dance team, or band uniforms would be
prohibited from wearing them.at NCAA championship
events. Two weeks after the policy was announced,
the NCAA Executive Committee approved an appeals
process by which colleges and universities subject to
the sanctions could challenge their individua! status.

On August 23, 2005, the Executive Committee
applied a newly created policy exception {o exempt
Florida State University—a large Division | school-

from tha naliry In aninnart ~fF thie antinn tha KNCAA
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namesake sovereign tribe, regarding when and how
its name and imagery can be used, must be respected
even when others may not agree” while maintaining
that it still considered Florida State University's use of
Native American imagery to be "hostile and abusive."
The NCAA Executive Committee subsequently
removed Central Michigan University, Catawba
College, Mississippi College, and the University of
Utah from the list of schools prohibited from using
Native American names and imagery based upon the
namesake tribe exception.

The University of North Dakota responded to the
2005 NCAA policy with an appeal to the NCAA
Executive Committee’s staff review committee; this
appeal was denied. In a letter addressed to the
NCAA President Myles Brand and Vice President
Bernard Franklin, President Kupchella expressed his
concerns about the "organizational self-righteousness”
and "executive fiat" evident in the NCAA's policy.
Specifically regarding the appeals determination in
UND's case, President Kupchella stated that the
"unfair, arbitrary, capricious, fundamentally irrational,
and harmfui manner" in which the policy was applied

to UND "leaves us no recourse but o consider
litigation."

2006
. The UND Indian Association—a student group--
: oted 26-2 to oppose the name because "use of

American Indian names and logos in athletics is
demeaning whether intended or not."

In October 2006 North Dakota Attornay General
Wayne Stenehjem filed a complaint in a state district
court against the NCAA. The complaint was filed on
behalf of both UND and the State Board of Higher
Education. The complaint stated three causes of
action--breach of contract, breach of contract for

implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, and’

unlawful restraint on trade. .Along with the complaint,
the Attorney General filed for a preliminary injunction
to "prevent tremendous consequences to UND and its
athletic . . . programs by immediate application of an
absurd, unauthorized and unlawful Policy of the
NCAA."

In the brief filed by the Attorney General, the
general allegations indicated that in applying the
NCAA Executive Committee's exemption policy,
Central Michigan University was removed from the list
of schools prohibited from using Native American
mascots, names, and imagery based upon namesake
tribe approval from the Saginaw Chippewa Indian
Tribe of Michigan. Numerous other federally
recognized tribes utilize the "Chippewa” name or refer

themselves as "Chippewa," including others within

e state of Michigan, of which a large number
opposed the use of the name by Central Michigan
University. .

According to the brief, the "NCAA Executive
Committee did not consider opposition to Central
Michigan University's use of the name 'Chippewa’ by
other Chippewa tribal authorities. The NCAA

January 2011

Executive Committee did not inquire about the views
of other federally recognized Chippewa tribes other
than the Saginaw Chippewa Tribe of Michigan. The
NCAA Executive Committee has applied a different
‘standard' to UND." In addition, according to the brief,
"[Florida State University] and other schools removed
from the list on the basis of namesake tribe approval
are free to participate in any NCAA championship
event in any venue while continuing to display their
schools' Native American names, mascots, and
imagsery."

The brief also indicated that "UND does not
sanction the use of stereotypical behavior historically
associated with Native American imagery, including,
but not limited to, drum beats, ‘tomahawk chops,’ and
the like. Before home games, a short presentation on
the history of the ‘Fighting Sioux' name is shown. All
incoming students to UND additionally receive
information on cultural diversity generally."

Attorney General Stenehjem declared that the
grounds in support of the preliminary injunction
included the ireparable damages that would result to
UND, the strong likelihood UND would ultimately
prevail at trial based on the merits of the case, the fact
that UND would suffer a relatively greater harm from
not having the injunction than the NCAA would if the
injunction were granted, and that the injunction serves
the public interest of the people of North Dakota, as
"[they] have a pivotal interest in having a nationally
recognized, superior state institution of higher
education with a correspondingly superior academic
program.” This preliminary injunction was granted by
the presiding judge, Judge Lawrence Jahnke, with the
trial set to begin in December 2007,

Also in 2006 the University of Minnesota said
bacause of the nickname, it would not compete
against UND in any sport except men's and women's
hockey.

2007

In 2007 award-winning author Ms. Louise Erdrich
declined an honorary degree from UND because of
the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo. Also in 2007
the Ralph Engelstad Arena hired Mr. Sam Dupris of
the Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe in South Dakota to
meet with tribal officials in North Dakota about the
nickname. Cheyenne River leaders later distanced
themselves from Mr. Dupris and reaffirmed _their
opposition.

In October 2007 a settlement was reached
between the NCAA and UND. Under the agreement,
UND was given three years to obtain approval for
using the name and logo from the two major Sioux
tribes in North Dakota—the Spirit Lake Tribe and the
Standing Rock Sioux Tribe. If this occurred, UNp
would become exempt from the policy. However, if
UND were unable to obtain the tribes’ approval within
the allotted three years, the school would have to
officially retire the "Fighting Sioux" nickname and logo
and be forced to adopt a new one that did not violate
the 2005 policy's "hostile and abusive" standard.
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2009
in 2009 ‘the Summit League stated that UND's
" application-for membership would.not be considered
until the university's nickname issue was resolved. In
addition a resolution opposing the nickname passed
UND's University. Senate by a vote of 25-17, with
unanimous-opposition from student senators.
On:April 21,.2008, a Spirit Lake Tribe referendum
rnisupport :of- the continued use of the Sioux nickname
;and Jogo:was approved by-more than a 2-to-1-margin.
On May 5, 2009, the State Board of ‘Higher
,Education directed UND to drop the name and logo

.unless.iit .could..obtain. .binding ‘30-year agreements
\WIth the hamesake tribes by October 1, 2009..-

- tjnsNovember: 2009:several-members of’ the Spirit
" Lake Tribe filed :a lawsuit challenging the deadtine’for
itribal :action, -and. a :districtcourt iissued a'temporary
~injunctioni-prohibiting” action-to retire: the nickname.
Following a hearing, the district court dismissed ‘the
lawsuit, but-plaintiffs 'appealed to the North: Dakota
Supreme Court.”

~2010
wo dn. January 2010 nickname supporters from the
Spmt TribeiLake filed an appeal to the ‘North Dakota
Supreme Court: fromra-district court judge’s rufing that
the State’Board ‘of Higher-Education:has the: authority
. to change _the_nickname.at-any time. “

.«On “March 22, 2010, petitions in support of a
referendum .on:the -nickname :and :logo issus, which
contamed 1004 signatures;. were .submitted to the
Standtng Rock Sioux:Tribal Councll. ®

.On-April 8,:2010,-the North.Dakota Supreme: Court
ISSUBd an opinion ‘that - afﬁrmed the district court's
decision.

At an April 8, 2010, meeting in Mayville, State
Board of Higher Education President Richie Smith
said the board would stand by its May 2009 decision
to change the nickname and start the transition unless
a motion was made to reconsider that action. Board
member. Claus Lembke of Bismarck made a motion to
reconslder ‘but the .motion .died ~due .to .Jack- of a
-second. ‘Board Chancellor William G. Goetz” was
Jinstructed--to -direct UND" President Robert Kelley to
start the  process -of -refiring the Fighting- Sioux
nlckname and -logo. .Foliowing the announcement of
‘the retirement of the nickname. and logo, $everal
ralies of support were conducted on the UND
campus.

‘On April 21, 2010, North Dakota Governor John
Hoeven urged:the State Board of Higher Education to
give "due consideration" to the results of a possible
Standing Rock Sioux Tribal Council referendum on
whether UND should keep its Fighting Sioux
nickname.

On May 86, 2010 President Kelley announced the
appointment of Dr. Robert Boyd, UND Vice President
for Student and Outreach Services, as the transition

officer ifor the -retirement of the nickname ‘and logo.
Dracidant Kallav indiratar thot tha nrarace mnet ha
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The State Board of Higher Education voted
unanimously on May 10, 2010, to extend the deadline
for UND to retire its nickname and logo to August 15,
2011,

On May 26, 2010, UND announced a timeline for
retiing the use of the Fighting Sioux nickname and
logo on merchandise. According to the timeline, by
July 1, 2010, the Fighting Sioux logo and nickname
will be removed from the Trademarx artwork website.

" No new designs bearing the Fighting Sioux fogo and

nickname will be approved after October 1, 2010. The
last day to sell merchandise bearing the Fighting
Sioux logo and nickname at retail is June 30, 2011.
Mr. Charles Murphy, the chairman.of the Standing
Rock -Sioux Tribal.Council, announced on. June 9,
2010, that-he would try to .arrange a tribal council
meeting for the following week to consider petitions,

seeking a' referendum on'support for the UND Fighting

Sigux nickname. -

On Jiine 17, 2010, the Standing Rock Tribal
Council, by a vote of 10-4, voted to make a final
decision that UND's Fighting Sioux nickname shouid
remain retired.

A September 10, 2010, statement from the NCAA
indicated that the NCAA was satisfied with UND's plan
to retire the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo. The
report stated that "UND has been removed from the
list of schools _subject to the policy regarding Native
American - ‘ricknames and Imagery at NCAA
championship events."

On September 21, 2010, UND President Robert
Kelley and ‘Vice President of Student Affairs Robert
Boyd held an open forum regarding the process
behind the retiremerit of the Fighting Sioux nickname
and logo. At the forum, it was reported that the
transition from the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo
would happen in three stages. Each of the three
stages has committees that have been seiected or are
in the process of being constructed. The first
committee--the ‘Honoring History and Traditions Task
Group--is charged with examining how the images
and history of the 80-year-oid name that has been the
athletic identity for the -majority of the university's
existence will be remembered. The second
committee~the Communications Task Group--is
charged with maintaining communication between the
committees, the general public, and President Kelley.
The final .group—the New Directions Task Group-—will
oversee the process of finding-a new nickname and
logo.

On October 12, 2010, the Honoring History and
Traditions Task Group held its first meet. The task
group's duties are to investigate, meet, and discuss
the best way for UND to recognize the former logo
and its history. The task group is also required to
make recommendations to President Kelley and Vice
President Boyd. Subseguent meetings of the task
group were held on October 26, November 9,

November 30, and December 14. The task group
indiratad at ite Navamhar A0 201N meastina that
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President Kelley regarding the group's comments,
recommendations, and supporting data.

USE OF TRIBAL NICKNAMES BY
NORTH DAKOTA SCHOOLS

LOCATED ON RESERVATIONS
The following is a list of North Dakota schools that
are located on Indian reservations in the state which
use a tribal or tribal-related name as their nickname,
mascot, or logo:
1. Four Winds Community High School Indians -
Spirit Lake Reservation.
2. Warwick Public School Warriors - Spirit Lake
Reservation.

January 2011

. Mandaree Public School Warriors - Fort

Berthold Reservation.

. Parshall High School Braves - Fort Berthold

Reservation.

. White Shield High School Warriors - Fort

Berthold Reservation.

. Turlle Mountain Community High School

Braves (Belcourty - Turtle Mountain
Reservation.
. Selfridge Chieftains - Standing Rock
Reservation.

. Solen High School Sioux - Standing Rock

Reservation.

. Standing Rock High Schoot Warriors (Fort

Yates) - Standing Rock Reservation.
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Hello to all the Legislatures and thank you for letting me testify to as why keeping the Fighting
Sioux name and logo should stay.

My name is Eunice (Abraham) Davidson, | am an enrolled member of the Spirit Lake Tribe and a
member of the committee to save the name and logo....| have been asked by many why do you
think it is an honor to have the University of North Dakota to use the name The Fighting Sioux?
When | was young | heard a lot of negative things said about the Indians so | never had a good
feeling about being Native American and that came mainly from Native Americans, | didn’t have
a whole lot of contact with white people back then. But when | started hearing them on the
radio and television mentioning the Fighting Sioux name it made me feel good and that being
an Indian must not be a bad thing. The first time | heard it on the radio “Here come the
Fighting Sioux” things changed for me. | could go on and on about how it has affected my life,
but I will just say, if it were not for that day long ago. | would not have the confidence to stand
here before you today. ! would not be able to speak my opinion, because t would fear the small
handful of tribal leaders who want enrolled members to roll over and play dead. | have respect
for myself and my people. 1wanted to tell people back then there talking about my people and
me, it gave me pride in who | was. | never thought of it as derogatory or abusive. Unlike the

opposition, | have fought for the people’s right to have a voice, instead of trying to silence
themn.

Statements have come from the leaders of both Tribes that the people are against the name
and logo. But as 67% voted on Spirit Lake that proves they are not speaking for their members.
It must be noted for the record that when it was clear that the people of Spirit Lake were to
have a vote, Erich Longie leader of the opposition on Spirit Lake tried to silence the people
through an injunction against having a vote. All attempts to silence the people of Spirit Lake by
the opposition failed.

| cannot speak for the people of Standing Rock, what { can say is | was totally shocked and
ashamed, when on May 14, 2009 | heard the words flow out of the mouth of their former
chairman. It became clear to me on that day that the Standing Rock Tribal government had
nothing but contempt for their people and traditions. Why else would you distort the truth and
silence the members of Standing Rock. But these are issues you have no control over. But you
do or should have some control over the State Board of Higher Ed and the UND Administration.
History books are full of the stories of white leaders seeking out a handful of Native Americans
to accomplish their personal goals. With total disregard for the damages the entire tribe
suffers. | believe that is the case here.

The news reports to this day, say that the name change is due to the Sicux of North Dakota.
But what are the facts? The fact is that every time the Tribes exhibited any type of support,
new deadlines and requirements were talked about and put into place by the State Board.




. The North Dakota State of Higher Ed’s actions have caused turmoil on both reservations,
turmoil that was completely unnecessary. They have put the Sioux at the center of the issue,
by media reports. But in court they have said we have no say in this issue. They have worked
with the handful of opponents in the Sioux community to silence the majority’s voice. They
have demanded requirements that even they could not agree to. They stood by sitently as
supporters were attacked falsely, time and time again.

The ND State Board of Higher Ed had the ability before, during and after the court agreement
was signed on Oct 26, 2007 with the NCAA to change the name and logo, and tell the public we
are changing the name regardless of the Sioux of North Dakota. But they chose to make us the
center point and then worked to have us reject the name.

The majority of Sioux of North Dakota have shown over and over again, that they support the
name and logo and the ND State Board of higher Ed has allowed us to become the center point.
| ask that you do not allow our rights to be taken away by a handful.

| ask that you respect us and require our full voice on this issue. if we are to be blamed, then
require our full voice. | ask that you support House Bill No. 1257.

. | thank you for the opportunity to be heard.
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Madame Chairwoman Kelsch and Honorable Members of the house and
education committee...Good Morning.

My name is David Davidson and | have been married to Eunice Davidson
for 42 years, and closely connected to the Spirit Lake Tribe for over 50
years. But with all that, | would not presume to talk for the Sioux. | am
here to talk to you as a white man who carries many black eyes. Black
eyes caused by white man manipulating a few tribal members at the
expense of the whole tribe. | feel thisis such a case...

TIMELINE

Starting back in September 2008, when Spirit Lakes plan to raise
. the tribal flag next to Standing Rocks at the REA, in the press chancellor
Goetz starts talking about changing deadlines.

After the Oct 2008 flag raising ceremony, statements from the
State Board are the need to hurry and change the deadline date and the
Summit League is brought into the debate.

By March 2009, its clear Spirit Lake will vote on the issue and
more statements from the Board on the need to hurry because of
Summit League!

April 16, 2009, Knowing of the vote staff from UND aid opposition
leaders on Spirit Lake to convince members to reject the name & logo,
also opposition leaders turn in their injunction against the people voice
the same day.

. April 21, 2009, 67% of Spirit Lake voice support and within hours
UND staffs question the intellectual ability of the people of Spirit Lake.



(level headed individuals would not support the name and logo)

May 10, 2008, at a forced meeting with Chancellor Goetz at the
Att. Gen. Office in Bismarck, he admits threw his attorney, of unofficial
meetings between the Board and the opposition, but he gives no
response to why they have not megt with supporters.

May 14, 2009, at the meeting in Dickenson ,Duaine Espergard call
the chairman of Standing Rock to rebut supporters views, a speech that
Grant Shaft said they heard many times. It was supporters first and only

time to voice theirviews. A wnp @ sTiiLT Aogmo win 21
PPy T
May 14, 2009, the Board votes unanimously to retire name & logo,

18 months early. Reason “Summit League.”

By July of 2009, it was clear on Spirit Lake, that they now were
fighting not just the NCAA, but also the State Board and UND
administration. And that the Sioux were going to be blamed for a
decision, that they had no input into.

They fought this though District Court and on to the North Dakota
Supreme Court. Where both courts agreed reluctantly, that under the
Boards authority, they have the power to change the name & logo any
time for any reason they choose. And the Sioux were not part of the
agreement and had no rights on this issue.

It was also stated by Ass. Att. Gen. Doug Barr at the North Dakota
"Supreme Court, the Board could not sign an agreement that would
forfeit they power to change the name at any time, yet they demanded
just that from two sovereign nations.

Nov. 2010, UND's scheduled meeting for acceptance in the



Summit League was cancelled and they joined the Big Sky League. (Was
the Summit League just a farce?)

Because the Sioux are still being blamed for a decision they had no
input into brought about by statements from the State Board of Higher
Ed.

| feel the Board forfeited its right to change the name, without the
voice of the majority of Sioux of North Dakota,

Your actions here today if successful do not silence the Sioux’s

voice it requires the voice of the Sioux, a sign of respect and honor!
i 1 EL P RUGHT 5wl @erg

Thank you for allowing me time to testify....
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UND president repeats denial that he asked Summit League to publicly criticize nickname

BISMARCK - Universily of North Dakota President Robert Kelley repaaled this morning his denial thal he ever asked Summil League Commissioner Tom Douple to publicly come out
against accapting tha Fignting Sicux as a jeague member until the school's controversial nicknamae issue was resolved,

By: By Chuck Haga, Forum Communications Ca., INFCRUM

BISMARCK - University of North Dakota Prasident Robert Kelley repeated this morning his denial that he ever asked Summit League Commissioner Tom
Doupie to publicly come out against accepting the Fighting Sioux as a teague member untii the school's controversial nickname issue was resolved.

"Tam has been very consistant with me that once we resolved the logo issue, the Summit League would review our appeal,’ Kelley said today as he waited
for the House Education Commitiee to begin hearings on three biils that wouid require UND to retain the nickname and logo.

"l am very surprised to find Tom thought there was pressure put on him to speak out on this issue,” Keley said.

“There has been some urgency on our part 1o get this resolved. | think he felt some urgency on our part. But 1 don't recali every putting pressure on Tom as
he impliad."

Kelley said he has not spoken with Douple about the commissioner's statement.

"I have neot had any conversations with Tom since our acceptance into the Big Sky Conference in November," ne said.

"l can't speculate on where this is coming from or why at this time."

Kelley atso said he "can't speculate on what he might have understood,” or whether Douple may have heard something from somecne else at UND.

"l have the highest respect for Tom, and | thought he understood perfectly that this (retirement of the logo) was the responsibility of the state board, and once
it was resolved we would be able to move forwarg.

"My responsibitity is to move ahead, and that's what we're doing."

Tags: higher education, sioux nicknams, sports, news, updatss, und
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Source: UND pushed early resolution on nickname

University denies asking Summit League 10 help accelerats state’s decision
The Universily of North Dakola asked an athlatic conlerence it once considered joning to publicly come oul against accepting the Fighling Sioux s a member uniil the controversial

nickname and logo issus was rasolved, according to Summil Laague Commissionar Tom Douple.

By: Joff Kolpack, INFORUM '

The University of North Dakota asked an athletic conference it once considered joining 1o publicly come out against accepting the Fighting Sioux as a
member until the controversial nickname and loge issue was resolved, according to Summit League Commissioner Tom Douple.

UND spokesman Peter Johnson said Monday and repeated Tuesday that university President Robert Kelley "categoricaliy denies” UND officials ever made
such a request to the Summit League.

*Faise. Not true at all,” Johnson said. "Neither the president or the athletic director or anybody else from UND ever talked to (the Summit League) from that
angle. in no way, shape or form did we ask (Douple) to make that an issye.”

If Douple's statement is true, it would be a 180-degree reversal of what has commonly been reported for more than two years: that Summit League officials

insisted the nickname issue be resolved sooner than the NCAA-imposed deadline of Nov. 30, 2010, so UND could be considered for inclusion in their
conference.

In trying to meet the hurried deadline for the Summit League, the state board of higher education last April moved up the deadline to retire the nickname, not
exhausting the timeline earlier given to them,

Commissioner Douple did not want to go into further detail on the issue, but when asked why he agreed to UND's request — that the Summit League would
pubkcly forward this idea — he said, *In support of the (UND) president. He thought it would help them and the board move quicker.”

The Summit's message did help the state board of higher education act more quickly.

UND and the Summit League first started having serious membership conversations in 2009 when the Surmit said it would make a site visit to the University

of South Dakota, but not UND. At the time, Douple was quoted as saying the Sumrmit would not visit UND “until the ioge issue is resolved one way or
anather.”

In response, UND athietic director Brian Faison told The Forum a day jater, “This is one of the reasons we need 1o get it resolved. And a resolution doesn't
mean it disappears. It could mean the tribes come to an agreement, but we need to get to that point sooner than later.”

The Summit League's stance lingered over the issue until last January's siate board of higher education meeting.
Kelley and Faison then urged the board to act as quickly as possible on the nickname, citing frequent questions they received on recruiting and postseason
competition, according to the meeting minutes. The minutes also state that Faison told the boarg that if the nickname is resolved befaore the Summit's

Presidents Council met last spring, then the igague can act on UND's application and begin scheduking for 2011-12.

Al the time, Faison told the board that the Big Sky Conference appeared to have no interest in UND. That, however, changed quickly last fall, and UND
utimately chose to join that conferance instead of the Summit League.

Contacted Monday, Richie Smith, state board of higher education president when the Summit was considering UND, said he would be surprised if UND
pushed Douple's stance on the nickname.

“That's news to me " he said.
Smith said he was one of a few board members who flew to Summit headquarters in Chicage and talked with Douple.

“He didn't care if the Sicux name stayed or left,” Smith said of Douple. “He made it pretty clear that until the NCAA said the matter was resolved, that UND
would not be admitted.”

The Summit Presidents Council has the authority to admit or geny any prospective member.
UNBD fits the geographical foctprint of the Summit, and its chief rival is 75 miles away in North Daketa State University,

The logo issue remains ongoing in the eyes of the North Dakota Legistature, which will hold a hearing on three bills in support of the nickname today. UND is
not part of those discussions, saying it is honoring the state board's directive last spring to begin retiring the nickname.

Douple said Tuesday that while UND officials deny they pushed the Summit League 1o offer an ultimatum on the nickname, he would have had no other good
reason to de it

“l wouldn't put mysel out there and put my membership through that on my own volition,” he said. “But it's water under the bridge. That's OK. They've
decided to move on, and we're moving on."
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ARTICLE VI - DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

Each district recognized under Articla N, Section 2, hereof, may organize kocal
District Councits and elact District officers 1o consult, make racommaendations and
advise the Trbal Council, the Superintendemt of the Reservation or officer in
charge, and the Secretary of the Interior, on all matters of local or tribal interest.

The District Counclis and officars shall exercise such powers as the Tribal Council
may deleqale.

ARTICLE Viil - AMENDMENTS

This Constitution may be amended or rewrltlen by a majority vote of the
qualified votars of the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe voling at an election called
by tha Chairman. The Chairman shall call an elaction upen a proposed
amendment or rewrile 10 tha Constitution al the raguest of threa fourths (3/4)
of tha members of the Tribal Caunch or upon petition of twenty (20) per cent
of the qualified voters of the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe.

ARTICLE IX - ADOPTION OF AMENDED CONSTITUTION

The amended or rewritten Constitution shall become effective when
ratified by @ majority of the qualified voters of the Standing Rock Sloux Tribe
voting In an aelection called by tha Chairman, pursuant to Article Vil of this
Constihution.

ARTICLE X - NOT AN INDIAN
REORGANIZATION ACT CONSTITUTION

This Constitulion ig not a Conslitution pursuant to Section 18 of the Indian
Reorganization Act of June 18, 1834, ¢. 5706, 48 Stat, 985, 887 (25 U.S.C. 476).

ARTICLE Xi - BILL OF RIGHTS

Section 1. The Tribe shall nol make or enforce any law prohibiting the free
axarcise of refigion, or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press, or

the right of the people peaceaably 10 assemble and to patition for a redress of
grievancas,

Section 2. The Triba shall not viclate the right of the people 1o be secure
In their persons, houses, papers, and effects against unreasonable search and
seizures, nor issue warrants, but upon probable cause, supporied by oath or
affirmation, and particularly describing the place to be searched and the
parson ot thing to be seized,

Section 3. The Tribe shall not subject any persan for the same offense
10 be twice put in jeopardy,

10
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i May 27, 2010

Charles W. Murphy, Chairman
Standing Rock Sioux Tribe

PO Box D

Fort Yates, North Dakota 58538

Dear Chairman Murphy:

Once again, | am requesting the issue regarding the petition to be placed on the agenda
at the next Regular Tribal Council Meeting in June 2010

On April 8, 2010, the Tribal Council met and approved Motion No. 2 that provides that
the "Triba! Council will resume discussing the matter once the N.D. State Board of
Education makes its final decision on the retirement of the UND logo and nickname.”

The following month, May 4, 2010 Tribal Council met and approved the following
Motion. #2. MOTION WAS MADE BY JESSE TAKEN ALIVE, SECONDED BY JCOSEPH
MCNEIL, JR., TO APPROVE DUE TO THE RECENT DEVELOPMENTS REGARDING
THE UND LOGO ISSUE THE SR SIOUX TRIBAL COUNCIL Will RESUME
DISCUSSING THE MATTER ONCE THE ND STATE BOARD OF HIGHER
EDUCATION MAKES IT'S FINAL DECISION ON THE RETIREMENT OF THE UND
LOGO AND NICKNAME. VOTE: 8- YES 7 - NO 0~ NV MC.

it is my view, that Tribal Council needs to delermine how to proceed with the petition
recetved In Apri 2010,  As you have acknowledged, we have no policies and
procedures established to conduct a referendum. The establishment of these policies
and procedures needs Lo be addressed, to include specific criteria to certify this petition,

This matter must be decided by the Tribal Council.

Sincerely,
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Standing Rock Sioux Tribe ’ Frank Jamerson Jr,

Adele White, Tribal Secretary Fisnnong Angeiipe Dot
Box D Samuoel B Harristo

Fort Yates, ND 58538 Forcuprne botei g

Apnl 12,2010

Dear Secretary White:

As you know, it is Imperative for us as duly elected Tribal officials to prompily and satisfactorily addresc
the concerns of gur Tribal citizens. The Standing Rock Sioux Tribe 15 in receipt of a petition for a
ferendum vote on the issue of the UND Fighting Sioux logo. This petition has been signed by 1,004
isting and/or potential voters. As we do not have a‘qur such a vote, we -~
must utilize the existing structure and precedent to provide a vehicle for the citizens of Standing Rock io
m\mte. As well, we must address the matter in a fair and timely
manner and communicate with constituents as to the status of their petition.

As. a result, t am requesting a specific action plan from your office far reviewing and verifying signatures
on the petition. Please also inciude information for communicating with the primary petitioners as to
the on-going status of their request.

Thank vou for your time and attention in this matter. {f you have any questions or concerns, piease
contact me at your convenience.
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North Dakota University System
HB 1208, HB 1257 and HB 1263 -
House Education Committee
January 26, 2011
Grant H. Shaft, Vice President,

North Dakota State Board of Higher Education

Madam chair and members of the House Education Committee, good morning. For the record,

my name is Grant Shaft, and I am the vice president of the North Dakota State Board of Higher
Education. | am appearing today on behalf of the board.

As a member of the board, 1 had the primary responsibility for addressing the issue of the
Fighting Sioux nickname and logo at the University of North Dakota. My purpose before your
committee today is to provide you with information regarding what led the State Board of Higher

Education to retire the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo and the process that led up to that
decision.

. NCAA ACTION

The University of North Dakota competes in athletics within the National Collegiate Athletic
Association (NCAA). Accordingly, UND, like all other schools competing in NCAA-sanctioned
events, is subject to the policies adopted by the NCAA.

In 2005, the NCAA adopted a policy that prohibited the display of Native American names or
imagery deemed hostile or abusive on team uniforms and associated paraphernalia at NCAA
championship events. Any school that continued to use Native American names and imagery was
prohibited from hosting or bidding to host championship events. Further, the policy urged
schools that were members of the NCAA to refrain from scheduling regular season competition
with schools that use Native American names and imagery. The University of Minnesota is one
institution that has taken this action against UND in all sports excepting hockey. UND was

identified as a school using Native American names and imagery and was placed on the list of
schools subject to the restrictions.

The NCAA provided a procedure to challenge a school’s inclusion on the list and provided that a
primary factor to be considered was whether a sovereign tribe had provided formal approval for
the use of the name and imagery. This would be the exemption under which Florida State
University is allowed to continue to use the Seminole name and imagery. UND appealed its
inclusion on the list and exhausted the administrative appeal process afforded by the NCAA. On
April 27, 2006, the NCAA issued a final decision rejecting UND’s appeal.

. With the administrative appeal options exhausted, the North Dakota State Board of Higher
Education authorized the attomey general, on October 6, 2006, to initiate a lawsuit against the
NCAA alleging breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing,
and for violations of anti-trust law. Shortly after {iling, the District Court issued a preliminary
injunction prohibiting the NCAA from applying the restrictions against UND untl trial.



On October 26, 2007, the attorney general briefed the State Board of Higher Education on the
status of the lawsuit and his extensive negotiations with the NCAA toward scttlement. Basced on
this briefing, both the State Board of Higher Education and the attorney general approved the
terms of this negotiated settlement. The settlement agreement included the following terms:

1. UND was provided a three-year period from November 30, 2007, to November 30,
2010, to securc approval from both North Daketa Sioux Tribes, (Spirit Lake and
Standing Rock).

2. During the three-year period, UND would not be subject to the NCAA restrictions.

3. If UND obtained the consent of both tribes, they would no longer be subject to the
NCAA restrictions UNLESS:

a. The NCAA changed its policy and no longer allowed schools te be exempt from
the restrictions, or
b. Either North Dakota Sioux Tribe withdrew its approval, at any time.

4. The District Court lawsuit was dismissed, with prejudice, meaning the litigants are
barred from relitigating the subject matter of the lawsuit.

| have included with my statement a copy of the STATEMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL
WAYNE STENEHJEM ON THE SETTLEMENT OF THE LAWSUIT AGAINST THE NCAA dated
October 26, 2007, and a copy of the Settlement Agreement dated October 26, 2007.

It should be noted that the attorney general 1s a UND alumm, and five of the eight voting
members of the board at the time of the settlement had attended UND and were supportive of
UND’s continued use of the nickname and logo. Further, with regard 1o the legal issues involved,
three voting members on the board were also licensed and practicing attorneys.

POST SETTLEMENT ACTIONS BY THE BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION

With the Settlement Agreement in place, resolution of the matter shifted from the attorney
general to the State Board:of Higher Education. From the date of settlement forward, the board
sought two resolves: :

1. Written permission from both tribes in accordance with the Settlement Agreement, AND

2. A long-term agreement with the tribes so that UND’s exemption from the NCAA
restrictions would not be jeopardized each time there was a tribal election or referendum.

The board felt both components were necessary so that the issue would be stabilized for a period
of years, and UND could plan accordingly.

Immediately following the NCAA settlement, the board unanimously supported an exhaustive
effort to obtain tribal approval. The spirit of the Settlement Agreement intended meetings at the
highest level of both higher education and tribal government. This effort involved engaging all



interested constituencies, including the Standing Rock and Spint Lake leadership, Ralph
Engelstad Arena, UND, alumm, local, state and federal officials.

The board initially instructed the chancellor of the North Dakota University System to contact
both tribes’ leadership to determmne their positions as to UND’s use of the name and logo. After
several meetings and follow-up discussions with the leadership of both tribes, the chancellor
reported to the board that both tribal councils emphatically opposed UND’s continued usage of
the name and logo. During this same time period, the board monitored private efforts at
obtaining approval from the tribes. These, too, were not successful.

By October 2008, both the Spirit Lake and Standing Rock tribal councits continued their
opposition to the nickname and Jogo and formally stated to the board that they would not
participate in any further discussions or meetings, regardless of the level of the participants. The
board resolved to continue making every effort to obtain their approval. In furtherance of this, a
committee was formed to engage the tribal leadership. Considerable time and effort was spent
insuring that the commitiee consisted of equal representation from nickname supporters and
those opposed including members from both tribes, UND, REA, government officials and the
Grand Forks community. The committee made several written requests to all members of both
tribal councils to meet. NONE of our written requests were answered, nor were our phone calls.
The committee was therefore unable to engage the tribal leadership.

Despite the committee’s efforts being rejected by the tnibal leadership, the board continued its
resolve to obtain approval. Since the tribal leadership was not receptive, the board embraced the
referendum process at Spirit Lake. Through the efforts of Spirit Lake tribal members, a
successful referendum vote was held requiring the Spirit Lake tribal council to adopt a resolution
authorizing UND to use the nickname and logo. An authorizing resolution was secured that
conformed to the terms of the Settlement Agreement. 1t should be noted that, prior to expiration

of the three-year NCAA Settlement pertod, petition efforts had been undertaken at Spirit Lake 1o
revoke this authorization.

While the above process was ongoing, UND’s president and athletic director notified the board
that UND wished to seek league affiliation with the Division I Summit League. According to
UND, their lack of solid league affiliation was jeopardizing UND’s transition to Division [
athletics. However, the Summit League refused to consider UND’s application until the
nickname and logo issue was resolved. Rather than wait for UND, the Summit League intended
to continue seeking other interested schools in hopes of filling its league needs. Given the
potential impact to the Fighting Sioux name and logo, the chancellor, board president and two
board members traveled to the Summit League offices in Chicago and met with the league’s
director to confirm their position. He confirmed the information provided by UND including the
possibility that the league would find another school to fill the opening sought by UND. Based
on the urgency presented by UND and the Summit League’s stated position on the nickname and
logo, the board was forced to address whether it was in the best interest of UND and its athletic
programs to delay application to the Summit League until November 30, 2010, or shorten the
timeline for tribal approval so as to accommodate the Summit League application.

In May 2009, Standing Rock’s leadership appeared before the board to formally express their
continued opposition to the nickname and logo. They also informed the board that there was a
tribal moratorium on the issue, and the referendum process was not available under the Standing



Rock constitution. This opposition was underscored in August 2009 when the Standing Rock
leadership refused to schedule a referendum vote requested by members of the tribe. The
Standing Rock leadership appeared before the board again on September 17, 2009, to restate its
continued opposition.

Despite the urgency of UND’s application to the Summit League and Standing Rock’s clear
oppostiion to name and loge approval, the board resolved to continue working for Standing
Rock’s approval in light of upcoming iribal elections in the fall of 2009. The elections were held,
and a new chairman was elected along with several new council members. With hope of a
change of posture on the part of the new tribal leadership, the chancellor and several board
members immediately met with Chairman Murphy in order to clearly convey the urgency of the
situation along with what approvals were needed. The new Standing Rock chairman clearly
stated that the moratorium on referendum elections rematned intact, that the name and logo issue
was of low priority to the tribe, and, even if an agreement could be reached, it would not be
binding on future elected councils. In other words, they could change their mind at any time.

Even.in light of this disappoihting positién' by the new chairman, the board continued to delay
taking action on the name and logo while efforts among the tribal members at Standing Rock
were underway to petition for a referendum, 1n spite of the existing moratorium on the same. On
April 6, 2010, the Standing Rock Tribal Council received the signatures of 1,004 members
supporting the nickname and logo and seeking a referendum vote. However, on June 12, 2010,
the same Standing Rock Tribal Council received a petition signed by 1,010 tribal members
urging the council 1o continue its opposition to the nickname and logo. On June 17, 2010, the
tribal council voted 10-4 to refuse to consider the petitions, and stated that the council had
reached a final resolution to.not discuss or consider the Fighting Sioux nickname and logo
further.

Overall, the Standing Rock tribal council has formally resolved on nine occasions between 1992
and 2010, under different chairmen and council makeup, to oppose UND’s use of the nickname
and logo or placing the issue on the ballot.

On April 8, 2010, based on the continued opposition from Standing Rock’s leadership and
information that UND’s application would need to be submitted to the Summit League by June
1, 2010, to be considered for membership and competition in 2012, the board directed Prestdent
Kelly to proceed with the process of retiring the nickname and logo. Immediately afier taking
this action, both the Division | Summit League and Big Sky Conference were in contact with
UND regarding conference affiliation. UND has now joined the Big Sky Conference.

Between April 8, 2010, and November 30, 2010, the end date of the Settlement Agreement, the
board continued to monitor Standing Rock’s position with board members stating that if tribal
approval was obtained by November 30, the board would reconsider the issue.

The final effort to obtain Standing Rock’s approval was a Standing Rock Tribal Court action
filed on October 18, 2010. Ten Standing Rock tribal members representing 1,004 petitioners
filed an action against the Standing Rock Tribal Council and its individual members to compel
the tribal council to give its support for UND’s use of the nickname and logo or to allow a
constitutional referendum vote. The tribal court denied their petition. An appeal was taken to the
Standing Rock Sioux Supreme Court as case no. COMP-10-563 and, on November 15, 2010, the



Supreme Court dismissed the appeal and sent the matter back to the tribal court. The tribal court
then dismissed the action in its entirety.

The above information is presented in summary fashion and cannot be specific to the hundreds
of hours spent by board members atlempting to secure approval from both tribes. The time and
effort invested by board members greatly exceeds any reasonable expectations of such a board,
and the time dedicated to doing so was often at the expense of other issues vital to UND and the
other 10 institutions in North Dakota. However, during the entire process, contrary to public
perception, all eight voting members of the State Board of Higher Education continued to believe
that UND’s use of the nickname and logo has always been respectful and dignified and that the
tribes should be afforded every opportunity to give their approval.

As of November 30, 2010, the following strategies for retaining UND’s use of the nickname and
logo had been attempted:

NCAA administrative review and appeals;

Legal action against the NCAA in District Court;

Direct appeals to the tribal leadership;

Formation of a statewide committee to engage tribal leadership;
Tribal elections at Standing Rock;

Referendum efforts at both Standing Rock and Spirit Lake
Tribal court action and appeal.

R N

This listing does not include other equally involved efforts undertaken by tribal members and
private groups.

T am unable to think of any additional action, nor has anyone been able to suggest additional
action, that the State Board of Higher Education or any government official or any tribal or
private party could have taken to secure the approval of both tribes.

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before your committee today. The State Board of Higher
Educaticn hopes that my testimony will help the committee understand the efforts undertaken by
the board and others to secure tribal approval for UND’s continued use of the Fighting Sioux
nickname and logo.

In the end, our constitutional obligation is to act in the best interest of the University of North
Dakota. In deliberating this legislation, we ask that you do the same, even if that action differs
from your personal feelings on this very emotional issue.

Thank you.



STATEMENT OF ATTORNEY GENERAL WAYNE STENEHJEM
ON THE SETTLEMENT OF THE LAWSUIT AGAINST THE NCAA
October 26, 2007

On August 5, 2005 the National Collegiate Athletic Association (“NCAA")
announced that it had adopted a policy that prohibited the display of Native American
names or imagery deemed hostile or abusive on team uniforms and associated
paraphernalia at NCAA Championship events and additionally prohibited schools that
continue to use Native American names and imagery from hosting or bidding to host
Championship events. The Policy further announced a set of “best practices” for
member institutions to consider adopting which would encourage':méihwber institutions to
refrain from scheduling regular season competition with schools that continue to use
Native American names and imagery. The University of North Dakota (“UND”) was
identified and placed on the list of schools subject o these restrictions.

The NCAA subsequently announced the procedures that an identified school had
for challenging its inclusion on the list of offending schools. The NCAA also announced
that as part of that review, one primary factor that would be considered would be
whether a sovereign tribe had provided formal approval for the use of the name and
associated imagery. Through the appeals process provided by the NCAA, only those
schools with namesake tribal approval were granted exemptions from the Policy.

UND appealed its inclusion an the list of offending school through each step of
the internal process afforded by the NCAA. On April 27, 2008, the NCAA issued a final
decision rejecting UND's appeal, determining that UND would remain on the list of
offending schools deemed to be using hostile or abusive names and imagery.

At the conclusion of the appeals process, it was determined thal the only
remaining recourse available to UND was through the initiation of litigation. The internal
appeals process was complete and UND did not have any further ability {o challenge

the NCAA's determination and its inclusion of UND on the list of schools deemed to be



using hostile or abusive names and imagery. The North Dakota State Board of Higher
Education subsequently authorized, and on Ociober 6, 2006, UND initiated a lawsuit
against the NCAA for breach of contract, breach of the implied covenant of good faith
and fair dealing, and for violations of North Dakota antitrust law. On November 11,
2006, the District Court issued a preliminary injunction prohibiting the application of the
Policy to UND until the issues were resolved at trial.

After extensive negotiation, the State Board of Higher Education on Cctober 26,
2007, formally agreed to setlle the lawsuit against the NCAA. Under the settlerment
terms, UND will be provided a three-year period from November 30, 2007 in which to
engage in a dialogue with North Dakota Sioux Tribes for purposes of securing
namesake approval for the continued use of the “Sioux” name and logo. [f namesake
approval is provided by both Spirit Lake and Standing Rock during this time period, the
NCAA will agree to exempt UND from application of the Championship restrictions.

At the end of the three-year period, should UND not have namesake approval
from both Spirit Lake and Standing Rock, UND agrees io transition to a new name and
logo. The NCAA agrees fo provide UND additional time until August 15, 2011 io
accomplish the transition. In addition, certain imagery is allowed to transition at later
dates, and some imagery would be allowed to remain indefinitely without implicating
championship restrictions.

The NCAA also expressly agreed to make a public stalement on the campus
environment at UND. The NCAA statement is:

The NCAA recognizes the University of North Dakota’s many
programs and outreach services to the Native American
community and surrounding areas. The University of North
Dakota is a national ieader in offering educational programs
to Native Americans.

The University has indicated that it intends to use the current
name and iogo with the utmost respect and dignity, and only
for so long as it may do so with the support of the Native




American community. The NCAA does not dispute UND’s
sincerity in this regard.

The NCAA believes, as a general proposition, that the use of
Native American names and imagery can create a hostile or
abusive environment in collegiate athietics. However, the
NCAA did not make any other findings about the
environment on UND’s campus. The NCAA also
acknowledges that reasonable people can disagree about
the propriety of Native American imagery in athletics. The
NCAA believes that the time has come to retire Native
American imagery in college sports.

This public acknowledgement was an important component of the settlement,

The settlement was agreed to by the Board by unanimous vote and approved by
the Attorney General. As part of the setilement, it is stipulated that the lawsuit against
the NCAA will be dismissed with prejudice.

HH#
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STATE|OF NORTH DAKOTA IN DISTRICT COQURT

COUNTY OF GRAND FORKS NORTHEAST CENTRAL JUDICIAL DISTRICT

State of North Dakota, by and through the North
Dakota $tate Board of Higher Educatior, and the
University of North Dakota,

National

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND

MUTUAL RELEASE
Plaintiff,

FILED N THE QiF CECF
CLERK OF DISTRICT COURT

Civil No. 66-¢-01333

Collegiate Athietic Association,

Defendant.

v. GRAKD FORKS COLLITY, 1t 137K ON

[ 1¥4
T

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MUTUAL RELEASE

Tlkis Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release (“Agreement”) is entered into between the

State of orth Dakota, acting by and through the North Dakota State Board of Higher Education and

the University of North Dakota (“UND™), and the National Collegiate Athletic Association

(lIN’CA‘All).

Policy 1¢

WHEREAS, on or about August 5, 2005, the NCAA Executive Committec announced a

garding the display of Native American nicknames, mascots and imagery at NCAA

Chmnpidrlship events (the “Policy™); and

W
reference

institutiol

MHEREAS, pursuant to the Policy, uniforms or other paraphemalia with Native American
5 or images cannot be worn or displayed at NCAA Championship competitions, and

1s which continue te display or promote Native American references are prohibited from

hosting Qhampionship events; and

WHEREAS, disputes and differences have arisen between UND and the NCAA regarding

promulgation of the Policy and application of the Policy to UND; and

WA 9298E3.1
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WIEREAS, UND filed a civil action advancing certain claims against the NCAA, which
action iy styled State of North Dakota, et al. v. National Collegiate Athletic Association, Civil No.
18-06-Ct1333, in the District Court, Northeast Central Judicial District, Grand Forks County, North
Dakota; pnd
WHEREAS, UND ésscrted claims against the NCAA for breach of contract, breach of the
mmphied ¢ovenant of good faith and fair dealing, and unlawful restraint of trade in violation of the
North thdta state antitrust laws; and
WHEREAS, UND recognizes that North Dakota Sioux Tribes, as the descendants of the
indigenoys people of the Northern Great Plains who UND strives to honor with its nickname, have
important contributions in determining whether, to what extent and in what manner the “Sioux”
name and the “Fighting Sioux” nickname or logo should continue to be used in conjunction with the
athletic tdadition at UND; and

WHEREAS, Plaintiff and Defendant each deny that they have any liability to the other,
whether drising out of the foregoing lawsuit or on any other basis;, and

WHEREAS, Plaintiff and Defendant desire to settle and extinguish all claims, rights of
action, capsesof action, aﬁd demands between themselves that they have or could have,
NCBW, THEREFORE, in-consideration of the agreements, releases and dismissal hereinafier
described| the parties agree as follows:

1. Plaintiff hereby voluntarily settles, resolves and releases all claims asserted, or which
could havg been asserted, against any party or individual in the above-captioned matier, and in doing
so will stipulete to dismissal of the above-captioned lawsuit with prejudice. Such dismissal shall be

filed with the appropriate Court within three (3) days of the date this Agrecment is fully executed.

. By such dismissal and by this Agreement, UND, with the intention of binding itself and its

2 WA 9298831
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adminisirators, emplayees and legal rcprcsenta’_dves, forever releases and discharges the NCAA and
all insufers, officers, directors, employees, legal representatives, and all other persons from all
claims, pauses of action, and demands of every kind, including attomeys fees, arising out of,
resulting from or 1n any manner pertaining to the Policy, except as expressly reserved in Section 3
below, which have been, or could have been, asserted by plaintiff as of the date of this Agreement.
3 In consideration for UND’s release of its claims, the NCAA shall agree as follows:
1. Effect of Namesake Approval. UND will be provided a period of time untit
Novembgr 30, 2010 (the “Approval Period™), 1o seek and obtain namesake approval for its nickname
and relaJed imagery, during which fime the Policy will not apply to UND and UND will not be
restricted from bosting and bidding to host championship events for which it otherwise would be
eligible ﬂn host. To secure approval qualifying UND for a namesake exemption from the Policy,
UND muyst have clear and affirmative support for the “Fighting Sioux’ nickname and logo, in the
form set h'orth in Subsection 2(c) below, from both the Spirit Lake Tribe (“Spirit Lake™) and the

Standing]Rock Sioux Tribe (“Standing Rock™). If UND obtains such support within the Approval

Pertod, then the Policy will not apply to UND until such time as either (i) the NCAA abolishes the
namesak¢ exemptlion for‘all schools and makes the Pelicy apply, with all of its restrictions, to all
exempted schools, or (ii) cither of the tribes named in this Subsection withdraws or otherwise
reverses its support for UND’s use of'the “Fighting Sioux” nickname and related imagery. The form
of withddawal or reversal, if any, is described in Subsection 2(c) below. The “Best Practices”
portio-n the Policy will apply to UND uniformly as it applies to all schools. No change or
modification in the current namesake exemption will have any affect whatsoever on UND’s rights
under thig Section, unless the namesake exemption is completely repealed so no member institutions

are exempted from the Policy by that exemaption. If the namesake exemption is completely repealed

3 i WA 929383}
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before UND secures namesake approval as set forth in this Agreement, then UNT shall not be able
to gain p namesake approval under this Subsection. II the namcsake exemption s completely
repealed after UND secures approval as set forth in this Agreement, then no school, including UND,
will be gntitled to the exemption.

Y, Efforts to Influence Tribes. The NCAA agrees that during the Approval Period it
will not jnitiate contact with any Sioux Tribe for the purpose of attempting to persuade any tribal
governmiental entity to provide or not provide namesake approval to UND. Such contact, initiated
by any r¢presentative duly authorized to speak on behalf of the NCAA acting in his or her official
capacity for the purpose of attempting to persuade any Sioux Tribal entity to provide or not provide
namesakp approval, shall be a material breach of this Agreement. Nothing in this Subsection,
however] gh&]l bé interpreted as prechuding any NCAA official from responding to questions or
seeking dlanfication regarding the position of one or more tribes.
cf . Form of Namesake Approval. The NCAA recognizes that the Spirit Lake Tribal
Council previously provided a resolution dated December 13, 2000. For purposes of this
Agreement, the December 13, 2000 resolution shail constituie namesake approval on behalf of Spirit
Lake upoh written confirmation, by an individual duly authorized to bind or speak on behalfof Spirit
Lake”,’ thﬂthe Tobe Vapprovcslof and afﬁz_x;uativgl_y supports UNLY's use of the current nickname and
relate@ imagery. In the gltcrnative, approval Ey Spi;il Lake unrelated to the December 13, 2000
resolutiog shall be coxﬁmunicated in wnting by an individual duly authorized to bind or speak on
behalf of the Tnbe. For purposes of this Agreemenf, namesake approval from Standing Rock shall
be adoptet by any means allowed in the Tribe’s Constitution and shall be in writing. For purposes
of this chcmcnt, withdrawal of approval by either Tribe shall be memeorialized in the same form as

the approval.

4 WA 9298831
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d. Absence of Namesake Apprbval. Within thirty (30) days from the date of this
Agreempnt, UND will announce that its Athictic Department will transition to a new nickname and
logo which do not violate the Policy or render UND subject to the Policy, if (i) it is unable to secure
namesale approval as set forth mn this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Approval Period, or
(i1} namgsake approval, once pravided, is withdrawn, In the event UND announces a transition to a
onew nickname and logo which do not violate the Policy, the transition will be completed on or
before Angust 15, 2011, subject to Subsection 2(f), below. If UND does not adopt a new nickname
and logo| or if the transition to a vew nickname and logo is not completed prior to August 15, 2011,
then UND will be returned to the list of institutions subject to the Policy. In the event UND secures
namesake approval but such approval is withdrawn after November 30, 2010, UND shall have one
(1) year 1P complete transition lo a new nickname and logo, unless the parties mutually agree to a
period of time longer than one {1) year.

e Appropriate use discussicns between UND and Namesake Tribes. It is
understopd that UND will continue to solicit on an ongoing basis, both before and after Namesake
approvaljis obtained, the views of North Dakota Sioux Tribes on the appropriate use of the Sioux
name ang related imagery in athletics at UND. No trbal resolution intended to communicate its
views, concerns, or suggestions as part of this 6ngoh1g dialogue shall be construed as nullifying prior
Namesake appraval, unless the tribal resolu.tion clearly expresses an intent fo withdraw support as
outhned jo Subsection 2(a) of this Agreement.

f Permitted Imagery at the REA and other venues. In the event there is a nickname
change phrsuant to Subsection 2(d), UND will not use a facility to host NCAA championship
contests, whether or not owned by UND, which contains images commonly associated with Native

Americar] culture, except as expressly set forth herein:

5 WA 529881
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1. Imagem of historical significance. Retaining imagery of independent

Historical significance wiﬂ not disquahfy the Ralph Engelstad Arena (“REA”), or other
venues, from hﬁst'mg NCAA championship contests. A complete list of those images which
the parties agfee have independent histonical significance is altached hereto as Schedule A,
Category 1, and incorporated herein.

2. Items Embedded in Architecture. Retaining imagery which is embedded in

atchitecture will not disqualify the REA, or other venues, from hosting NCAA championship

chntests. A compiete list of those images which the parties agree are embedded in

afchitecture is attached hereto as Schedule A, Catcgory 2, and incorporated hercin.

3. Removal in the Ordipary Course. Retaining certain specifically identified

irpagery which will ultimately be replaced because of ordinary wear and tear will not
disqualify the REA, or other veoues, from hosting NCAA championship conlests, A
cqgmpletelist of those images which the parties agree will be replaced in the ordinary course,
bt ip no event Iatlcr than the dates identified, is attached hereto as Schedule A, Category 3,
agd incorporated herein. Nothingl‘in this Agrecment precludes UND from bidding to host
ﬁtme predetermined events, including at venues which are continuing to make transitions
corisistcnt with this Agreement, The NCAA may, at its discretian, accept or reject a bid
pr\)p_OSﬂ.l from UND which provides that transitions in échedulc A which are not then, but
ar¢ required to be, complete will be completed prior to the date of the championship event

fot which the bid is submitted.

g. “Best Practices” Portion of the Policy. During the Approval Period, or until such

time as UND secures namesake approval during that Approval Period, the “Best Practices” portion

of the Polipy will afso be suspended inits application to and not apply to UND. Within 5 (five) days

5 WhA 919883.1
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of the date of this Agreement, the NCAA shall issue a statement to its members which includes the
follo-wing language: “Application of the Policy to TUND has been suspended, subject to terms
outlined in this Agreement, by mutual agreement between UND and the NCAA. No member
institutign should use the Policy as a factor in scheduling regular season competition with UND.
Regulariseason competition should be scheduled m accordance with each individual institution’s
own intgmal policies and practices.” If UND announces a transition to a new nickname and logo at
the end ¢f the Approval Period, or at any time durng the Approval Period, then the NCAA shall
issue a sfatement to ils members which includes the following lanpuage: “UND has been removed
from thellist of schools subject to the Policy and no member institution should use the Policy and its
prior.ap; l1cation to UND as a facter in scheduling regular season competition. Regular season
competitjon should be scheduled in accordance with each individual institution’s owﬁ internal

policies 4nd practices.”

h Control of Venue. The NCAA recognizes that UND does not own or control all
venues i which its athletic teams ordinarily compete. If UND is removed from the list of
institutiohs subject to the Policy because it transitions fcu anew nickname and loge, UND may host
NCAA championship events at facilities which do not contain or display imagery inconsistent with

the Poli;:jr or this Agreement, including, but not limited to, any facilities owned and controlled by
UND. [t nay also host reguiar season contests in any venue of its choosing, provided the venue is

otherwise fit for use. However, absent namesake approval as set forth herein, UND expressty

waives agy opportunity to host NCAA championship events at outside venues (f.e., venues UND

does not ¢wn) containing or displaying imagery which is inconsistent with the Policy and/or this

Agreement,

7 WA 9298830
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NCAA Statement on Campus Environment. The NCAA shall make a public

armoundfement which includes the following language, including posting the text onthe NCAA wely

site:

I

The NCAA recognizes the University of Neorth Dakela’s many
programs and outreach services fo the Native American community
and surrounding areas. The University of North Dakota is a nattonal
leader in offering educational programs to Native Americans.

The University has indicated that it intends to use the current name
and logo with the utmost respect and dignity, and oaly for so long as
it may do so with the support of the Native American community.
The NCAA does not dispute UUND’s sincerity in this regard.

The NCAA believes, as a general proposition, that the nse of Native
Afmerican names ‘and imagery can create a hostile or abusive
envxronmcnt in colleginte athletics. However, the NCAA did not
mzke any other findings about the environment on UND's campus,
The NCAA also acknowledges thal reasonable people can disagree
about the propriety of Native American imagery in athletics. The
NCAA belicves that the time has come to retire Native American
imagery in college sports.

Intellectual Property. IfUND announces a fransition to a new nickname and Jogo at

the end ¢f the Approval Period, or al any time during the Approval Period, then any intellectual

property and/or icensing rights to the “Fighting Sioux” nicknarne and mark shall remain, except as

provided

exercised,

Athletic

herein, the sole property of UND» and shall not be further assigned, released, abandoned,
or otherwise used, except as expressly permitted herein, in connection with UND’s

Department. UND reserves and shall have the right, at any time, to assign or transfer

inteliééhfﬂ property or Eéensing rights of the “Fighting Sioux” nickname and mark to any Sioux

nation or

tribe. Retention of images bearing the nickname and logo as displayed on or before the

date of HIS Apgreement shall not be deemed a violation of this Subparagraph. Residual trademark

retention

retention

good will in connection with the continuing and continuous commercial use through
of images bearing the nickname and/or logo demonstrates contmuing trademark use and

of trademark rights.

g : WA 910881 !
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5. Reservation of Legal Rights. To the extent the NCAA modifies, adds to, expands or

otherwige changes the Policy, its interpretation, or its application in any regard following the

executia

n of this Agreement, UND shall retain the right to challenge the changed Policy in any

manney ind on any grounds it chooses, including without limitation through court action chaliepging

the pow

4

ofhcer, &

er of the NCAA to enact the Policy or any portion thereof.

Public Accountability. It is understood that this Agreement in no way restricts any

mployee, or agent of the State of North Dakota or the NCAA from discussing the events

leading 4p to and including this Settlement Agreement nor does the Apreement restrict any officer,

employe
Records

5

e, ar agent of the State of North Dakota from releasing any public docurnents under Open
[aws, cxcept as oltherwise provided by court order.

Modifications in Wnting. Any modifications to this Agreement must be in wnting

and execpted by UND and the NCAA.

6]

Entire Agreement, UND and the NCA A agree that this Agreernent constitutes all the

agreements between them, and they bave no other written ar oral agreements or understandings.

7.

the laws

8.

Govemning Law. This Agrecment shall be construed and enforced in connection with

gf the State of North Dakota.

Warranties. The parties warrant that before executing this Aprecment, they have had

the advice of their attorneys; that they have read the same and fully understand its contents and

meaning; pnd that they have authority and competency to execute this document on behalf of the

respectiv

¢ parties hereto,

g WA Q3831
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Dated 'My of October, 2007,

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this‘gﬁ_ ay of October, 2007.

NATIONAL COLLEGIATE ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION

M
By: M‘“\Q}v
ATmcsA A.SCHAEFER

jﬁ; Herricks County

i Lgimal

Notary Public

La s : My Commission Explres
i ‘%«’Y“ﬁ May 22, 2008

Dated this 25 " day of October, 2007

ATE BOARD OF HIGHER

e

10 WA 920583.1
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SCHEDULE A.

Items of Historical Significance.

All championship banners, photographs, trophies, and
dedication memarials and mirrors displayed at UND and
associated sites including the Ralph Engelstad Arena.'

Native American sculpture (busts) and player statue
currently located at Ralph Engelstad Arena.’

Sitting Bull Memortal statue on grounds of Ralph Engelstad
Arena’

Betty Engelstad Sioux Center arena entrance plague.”

Cost Prohibitive Changes.

In floor granite logos located a! the Ralph Engelstad Arena,®

Transition in the Ordinary Course of Wear and Replacement.

All carpet, artificial turf, tile, laminate or wood flooring, with
the exception of imagery affixed through decals, provided the items
are replaced no later than December 31, 2012.°

Aisle Seating standards at the Ralph Engelstad Arena, provided the items
are removed no Jater than December 31, 2012.7

Brass etched logos located within the Ralph Engelstad Arana, provided the
items are removed no later than December 31, 2011.%F -

I

See Exhibit A, Pictures 1-25. Such championship items eamed during the Approval

Period, which obwously cannot be photographed at this tire, shall also be considered “Items of

Historical
2

3
4

5

Significance™ for purposes of this Agreement.
See Exhibit A, Pictures 26-27.

See Exhibit A, Picture 28.

See Exhibit A, Pictures 29-30.

Bee Exhibit A, Pictures 31-32.

Bee Exhibit A, Pictures 33-36.

See Exhibit A, Picture 37.

Bee Exhibit A, Picture 38.

11 WA 929E83.1
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are removed or replaced no later than December 31, 2011 2

December 31, 2013.1°

31,2015.1

bee Exhibit A, Picture 39.

See Exhibit A, Picture 40.
iSee Exhibit A, Picture 41.
See Exhibit A, Picture 42.

12

d. Lighted extenior logos at the Ralph Eugelstad Arena, provided the items

e. All official imagery located within administrative and other arcas of the
Relph Engelstad arena and UND cempus not ordinarily open 1o the public
during athletic competifion, provided the items are replaced no later than

f. Etched glass doors leading to the club areas of the Ralph Engelstad Arena,
provided the items are replaced no later than December 31, 2012t

g Etched gless doors leading to the administrative areas of the Ralph
Enjgelstad Arena provided the items are replaced no later than December

WA 925881 1
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TESTWONN  ATIALNMENT Q
HB 1263, HB 1257, and HB 1208

Testimony by Rep. Lonny Winrich, District 18, Grand Forks

Good morning, Chairman Kelsch and members of the House Education Committee. For the record, | am Rep.
Lonny Winrich from District 18 in Grand Forks. | am pleased to appear before you this morning to testify in
opposition to HB 1263, HB1257, and HB1208. These three bills differ slightly in their details but all attempt to
accomplish the same thing and in consideration of the committee’s time | will testify once but in opposition to
all three bills. This will also leave additional time for you to hear from citizens.

| joined the faculty at UND in 1985. | know from personal experience that the Fighting Sioux nickname and the
customs and symbols that accompany it have been controversial for more than 25 years. The divisiveness and
rancor generated by this controversy have negatively affected academics, athletics, and student life on campus.
I know there are several people here from UND to testify this morning. They are students, faculty, and staff who

are on campus every day and have firsthand experience with the problems caused by the nickname. | urge you
pay careful attention to what they have to say.

But even if your interest in this issue is motivated by your love of UND athletics and your time on campus is
pretty much limited to attendance at hockey or football games, you should still resist a return of the nickname,
The nickname has already adversely affected the athletic programs at UND and a return could have a
devastating effect. | want to close with a letter from a friend of mine in Grand Forks. Her name is Be